
 

Audit and Governance Committee agenda 
Date: Wednesday 1 February 2023 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: The Oculus, Buckinghamshire Council, Gatehouse Road, Aylesbury HP19 8FF 

Membership: 

R Newcombe (Chairman), L Clarke OBE (Vice-Chairman), D Anthony, R Carington, M Dormer, 
C Etholen, D Goss, N Hussain, W Raja, S Rouse, R Stuchbury and N Thomas 

Webcasting notice 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed. 

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. 
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s 
published policy. 

Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the 
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit. 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at 
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

Agenda Item 
 

Page No 
 
1 Apologies  
    
2 Declarations of interest  
    
3 Minutes 3 - 12 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 

November 2022. 
 

 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


4 Buckinghamshire Council Statement of Accounts 20/21 and 21/22 
Update 

Verbal 
Report 

    
5 External Auditor's Annual Report 13 - 50 
    
6 Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24 51 - 76 
    
7 Risk Management Group update 77 - 80 
    
8 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update (incl. Internal Audit 

Plan) 
81 - 106 

    
9 Contract Procedure Rules - Waivers & Breaches 107 - 116 
    
10 Work Programme 117 - 120 
    
11 Action Log 121 - 122 
    
12 Date of Next Meeting  
 29 March 2023 at 10 a.m. 

 
 

 
13 Exclusion of the public  
 To Resolve: 

  
that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraph 
indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 

 

 
14 Confidential Minutes 123 - 126 
 To approve as a correct record the confidential minutes of the meeting 

held on 23 November 2022. 
 

 

 
15 Contract Procedure Rules - Waivers & Breaches (Part 2) 127 - 140 
    
16 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and 

Audit Actions Summary Report 
141 - 182 

    
17 Action Log (confidential) 183 - 184 
   
 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Leslie Ashton on 01895 837227, email 
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 



 

Buckinghamshire Council 

Audit and Governance 
Committee  

 
 
 
 

Minutes 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 23 
NOVEMBER 2022 IN THE OCULUS, BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL, GATEHOUSE ROAD, AYLESBURY 
HP19 8FF, COMMENCING AT 10.00 AM AND CONCLUDING AT 12.37 PM 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
R Newcombe (Chairman), D Anthony, M Dormer, D Goss, R Stuchbury and N Thomas 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
J Chilver 
 
Agenda Item 
  
1 APOLOGIES 
 Apologies were received from Councillors R Carington, A Christensen, L Clarke OBE, T Dixon, C 

Etholen and S Rouse. 
  
The Chairman welcomed Councillor R Stuchbury to the Committee who had replaced Councillor 
Majid Hussain. 
  

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

  
3 MINUTES 
 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2022 be approved as a correct record. 
  

4 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS UPDATE 
 The Committee received an update on the 2020/21 and 2021/22 Statement of Accounts. The 

Committee also considered the management response to the Audit Risk Assessment attached at 
Appendix A to the report. Prior to discussion, the Chairman welcomed Mr Mark Stocks, Audit 
Partner and Ms Sheena Phillips, Audit Manager from Grant Thornton, external auditors.  
  
The revised reconciled and completed Statement of Accounts were submitted to the auditors on 
23 September 2022. Due to reduction in Gross Expenditure on the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account (CIES) the audit materiality had decreased which had resulted in additional 
sample testing. The external auditors had resumed their audit from 1 November 2022. Officers 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



were working to resolve outstanding audit queries promptly and held regular bi-weekly 
meetings with auditors to monitor progress. Due to additional sampling, it was anticipated that 
the audit would be completed in January 2023 and the final accounts for 2020/21 would be 
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee for approval at its February meeting. 
  
Work continued to progress on the 2021/22 Accounts draft accounts ensuring all the issues 
raised by the auditor on 2020/21 accounts were addressed. However, the accounts would not 
be finalised until the audit for 2020/21 was completed as this could potentially have an impact 
on the opening figures. 
  
The Audit Risk Assessment report covered areas of auditor risk assessment along with the 
management response. The Committee considered the management response to aid in fulfilling 
its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 
  
Key points raised during discussion included: 

• Mr Stocks advised that there remained a focus on the completion of the 2020/21 
accounts and an external audit team was working on the audit which would require a 
good deal of Council officer time to support and resolve queries. A team from Grant 
Thornton would also shortly be undertaking the Pension Fund Accounts 2021/22 audit, 
and associated sign off of admitted bodies to the Pension Fund. January/February 2023 
was the target date for completion. It was noted that officers would be stretched at this 
time of the year, with budget preparation amongst a range of other priorities. 

• Financial planning was as it should be for the 2021/22 accounts, although there could be 
resourcing issues in addressing the backlog of queries for 2020/21. Should all queries be 
resolved, officers would work with the external auditors to establish a timeline for the 
2021/22 Accounts. It was anticipated that the 2021/22 accounts would be ready early on 
in the new financial year. 

• The national infrastructure issue which affected all upper tier or unitary authorities was 
still awaiting legislation to pass through Parliament. If this had not been rectified by 
February 2023, the 2020/21 accounts would be signed off ‘subject to’ any infrastructure 
accounting points arising from the legislation. 

• The Committee heard that many of the challenges encountered with the 2020/21 
accounts were when establishing an opening position and the associated work that went 
with this. All local authorities who had been through the unitary process had 
encountered similar delays. Challenges were compounded by resourcing issues, and key 
staff leaving the Council which meant there was a lack of knowledge transfer from legacy 
Councils. As the team built its resilience it was anticipated that there would be a more 
‘normal’ approach able to be taken with future Statements of Accounts work. 

  
RESOLVED: 

(i)                 That the 2020/21 and 2021/22 Statement of Accounts updates be noted. 
(ii)               That the management response to the auditors be noted as accurate. 

  
  

5 DRAFT PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS TO 31ST MARCH 2022 
 The Committee considered a report which contained the draft unaudited Statement of Accounts 

for the Buckinghamshire Pension Fund for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Pension Fund 
Account and Net Asset Statement show that in the year to 31st March 2022 the value of the 
Pension Fund increased by £275m to £3.913bn. This was the net result of the contributions 
made (£169m) including transfers in from other pension schemes, employers’ and employees’ 
contributions; payments out £144m including pensions, commutations, lump sum retirement 
benefit and death benefits; management expenses £17m plus net returns on investments 

Page 4



(£267m). The accounts had been prepared in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22. 
  
The external audit of the pension fund draft accounts 2021/22 would commence shortly. A 
further report, incorporating the findings of Grant Thornton would be brought to this 
Committee at a future meeting where representatives from Grant Thornton would be in 
attendance. 
  
Key points raised during discussion included: 
  

• An updated version of page 81 of the reports pack was tabled at the meeting, this added 
the missing ‘£000’ text from the table headings of column 3 and 4 on the third table 
down the page which related to 2021/22 Exposure to interest rate risk. 

• A Member queried whether the accounts should display where investments were placed 
by category, such as funds held in emerging green energy markets. The Committee was 
advised that this aspect of the pension fund was reviewed by the Council’s Pension Fund 
Committee and the information contained within the Statement of Accounts was done 
so in compliance with proper practices. It was explained that there was a Pension Fund 
Annual Report published on the Council’s website which had further analysis included. 

• Inflation costs were discussed and it was confirmed that those in receipt of a pension as 
of 1 April 2023 would receive a 10.1% CPI increase, this was the level of CPI in September 
2022. Members heard that continued inflation increases could potentially impact the 
pension fund accounts in the future with actuaries currently working on assumptions 
that inflation may remain high for two years then return to levels which were more 
ordinary. Longevity assumptions assumed that there would be peaks and troughs which 
would level out over a number of years. The finance team were working on modelling 
with the Brunel pool and investment managers to ensure there was sufficient cash flow 
to match outgoings.  

• In relation to management expenses, the Committee was assured that these were 
reasonable and competitive. Significant savings had been achieved in recent years from 
moving to the pooling model, whilst fees were linked to the value of assets so should 
they perform well, the management fees would be higher. 

  
RESOLVED:  
That the Committee reviewed the Draft Statement of Accounts for Buckinghamshire Pension 
Fund for the year ended 31st March 2022 and the timing and requirements for completion and 
authorisation of the final Statement of Accounts be noted. 
  

6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR UPDATE REPORT 
 Councillor John Chilver, Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and Resources attended to 

present to the Committee the treasury management mid-year report which detailed the 
treasury management activity for the first six months of the financial year. A summary of the 
Council’s borrowing and the treasury cash (investments) position was summarised within the 
report as was the budget monitoring position. Approximately £296m was held in loans, whilst 
circa £197m was in investments.  
  
The report noted that in the current economic climate it was considered appropriate to keep 
investments short term to cover cash flow needs, but also to seek out value available in periods 
up to 12 months with high credit rated financial institutions. 
  
 

Page 5

https://buckinghamshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50546/Annual%20Report%2021-22%20draft%20september.pdf
https://buckinghamshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50546/Annual%20Report%2021-22%20draft%20september.pdf


In overall budget terms, the Council was forecast to be £2.8m net better off during the year, the 
increase in interest rates meant that the Council was forecast to achieve £1.884m more 
investment income than budgeted for. The Council was forecast to spend £8.379m on interest 
for external borrowing activity in the financial year, an underspend of £916k compared to the 
budget of £9.295m. The budget assumed that the Council would undertake new borrowing in 
2022/23, to date no new borrowing had been undertaken. Another factor, however, was the 
continuation of the Council’s strategy to use surplus cash instead of borrowing, to reduce risks 
and keep external financing costs low. The Council would continue the strategy of internal 
borrowing while it made sense to continue to do so.  
  
Key points raised during discussion included: 

•   To date there had been no new borrowing in 2022/23, or indeed since the start of the 
unitary Council. The priorities highlighted in order within the Treasury Management 
Strategy were security, liquidity and then yield. 

•   There was no prospect of early redemption of LOBO loans, although the Council would 
consider this if the opportunity arose. 

•   Treasury Management loans would be covered under item 7, however in response to a 
query raised, the Committee was advised that in relation to the loan to Thurrock Council, 
assurances had been received from the Section 151 Officer at Thurrock that funds would 
be repaid in full as they matured in January 2023. Thurrock had made arrangements 
directly with the Treasury to ensure that they could satisfy cash flow requirements. 

•   It was confirmed that the Council continued to have a low risk appetite in respect of 
investments and borrowing and this approach had not changed during the recent 
economic crisis. 

•   It was further confirmed that the sovereign credit rating system was used by the Council 
when considering investing in other countries, who required a minimum AAA rating, as 
set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. 

  
RESOLVED:  
That the Treasury Management Mid-Year Update for 2022/23 be noted. 
  

7 TREASURY MANAGEMENT LOANS TO OTHER LOCAL AUTHORITIES 
 Councillor John Chilver, Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and Resources presented to the 

Committee a report which detailed the Council’s approach to loaning funds to individual local 
authorities, the parameters for which were set in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. 
The report was brought before the Committee due to recent publicity around loans to other 
local authorities who had found themselves in financial difficulties. The Committee was advised 
that there was minimal risk to funds loaned to other local authorities, even those under 
significant pressures. There was specific protection under the Local Government Act 2003 which 
made clear that all loans were secured on future revenues and this included the ability to take 
legal action if any debts were not repaid. 
  
Members were informed that no local authority had ever defaulted on a loan and the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy, agreed in February 2022 tightened the control procedures 
around new investments in local authorities who were issuing Section 114 notices or requested 
capitalisation directives to require approval from the Section 151 Officer and relevant Cabinet 
Member.  No such proposals had been made this financial year and measures had been 
strengthened further to require approval from the Leader and Chief Executive of the Council 
prior to making any local authority loan. There was a Treasury Management watch list held 
which included authorities who had requested capitalisation directives or where commissioners 
had been appointed regardless of any formal notices or directives.  
  

Page 6



The Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24 would be updated to reflect the actions from the 
27th September Audit and Governance Committee meeting and would be presented to the 
Committee at its meeting on 1 February 2023. 
  
During discussion, key points raised included: 
  

•   The Treasury Management watch list was kept under regular review and local authorities 
were added as necessary. Members were reminded that a previous investment in Slough 
Borough Council, who had issued an S114 notice was recovered in full on time. The 
thorough due diligence review that the Council would now undertake before a local 
authority loan was made would complement the watch list and act as an additional 
measure before making a decision on whether to add an authority to the watch list.  

•   The Council’s Treasury Management Advisors advice was still for Local Authorities to be 
continued with as a counterpart investment option. Members were assured that there 
was every confidence Thurrock would repay their loan when it matured in January, as 
noted in the minute for the previous item.  

•   A question was raised around whether the Council was made aware what the investment 
would be used for by the borrowing Local Authority. The Committee was advised that 
the Council would not take account of what the funds would be used for when making a 
decision, and would focus on ensuring the overall financial standing of that local 
authority was satisfactory.  

•    The Committee raised concern that there was a reputation risk to the Council in lending 
to authorities who ultimately issued Section 114 notices or found themselves in financial 
difficulties and were assured by the Cabinet Member that the Council would not expose 
itself to unnecessary risk.  

  
RESOLVED: 
That the additional controls implemented for loans to other Local Authorities be noted. It was 
further noted that the Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24 would take into account the 
new range of government interventions and not just the capitalisation directives and S114 
notices.  
  
  

8 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 The Committee considered a revised draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2021/22. 

This was the second AGS for Buckinghamshire Council and related to the second year of the 
Council’s operation as a unitary authority. Recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic was a key 
feature of the year. The Committee made some initial comments on the earlier draft at its 
meeting in September 2022. This revision incorporated the amendments suggested by members 
of the Committee at the last meeting and since. In particular, the Committee felt that OFSTED’s 
SEND inspection (Special Educational Needs and Disabilities) should be reflected in the AGS and 
its associated action plan for 2022/23. This had been done. 
  
The Statement now also included the following as raised by members of the Committee: 
a) ‘COVID-19’ – standardised reference to this throughout 
b) Risk Management Group – importance of the challenge made to directors on acceptable risk 
levels, page 2 and 15 
c) The learning of lessons generally and also from other authorities’ experience - page 2 and 16 
d) Council – role in approval of ‘budget and policy framework’, page 6 
e) Deputy Cabinet Members – role in support of Cabinet, page 6 
f) Audit & Governance Committee – attendance by the Council’s statutory Section 151 Officer 
(current Service Director of Finance), page 6 

Page 7



g) Select committees – more detail on their coverage and contribution, page 6 
h) Community Boards and High Wycombe Town Committee - roles, page 7 
i) Internal and External Audit – reflect their counter-fraud role, page 8 
j) General Data Protection Regulation – GDPR policy to be referenced, page 10 
k) Induction for members – include reference to ICT training on data security, page 10 
l) Constitutional change – emphasise dual role of this Committee and the Standards & General 
Purposes Committee, page 10 
m) Election petition – correct the previous reference by referring to “the Totteridge & 
Bowderdean Ward”, page 11 
n) Community Board experience – highlight that the ‘rapid review’ also included engagement 
with unparished communities, page 12 
o) Community Board experience – reflect that a range of stakeholder views across parished and 
unparished areas were sought on their experience of community boards, page 12 
p) SEND Inspection – clear articulation of the SEND Inspection, page 12-13; and inclusion of it in 
the Action Plan for 2022/23, page 18 
q) Refugee support – include reference to Ukrainian refugees in addition to support for Afghan 
refugees, page 13 
  
A Member welcomed the inclusion of the reference to the SEND inspection, noting that much of 
the action required was not only the Council’s responsibility but also the responsibility of key 
partner organisations. 
  
RESOLVED: 
That the Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 be approved. 
  

9 BUSINESS ASSURANCE STRUCTURE UPDATE 
 The Committee received a report which provided an update on and attached the new Business 

Assurance structure, following completion of the service review process. The new structure 
went live on 1 November 2022 and the team now reported in to the Service Director for Legal 
and Democratic Services, and the Head of business Assurance retains a ‘dotted line’ reporting 
arrangement to the S151 Officer. CIPFA highlighted a number of considerations which had been 
taken in to account as part of the service review.  
  
During discussion, key points raised included: 

•   There were a number of vacancies within the structure, for which there had been a good 
number of applicants, with interviews due to take place in the coming weeks. It was 
hoped that by the next meeting of the Committee in February, an update on 
appointments would be available. All roles were advertised internally, with some 
advertised externally as well and the more specialist posts posted in specific 
publications. There had been a number of internal applicants from individuals seeking 
promotion opportunities.  

•   The structure was created with career progression opportunities in mind and ‘Grow your 
own’ was promoted with trainee and apprenticeship roles included within the structure 
which made for good succession planning. 

•   Within the structure, particularly the addition of trainee and apprenticeship roles, there 
would be the opportunities for increased audit work to be undertaken internally, rather 
than relying on external providers. It was, however noted that the external resource 
remained a good option to use particularly for specific specialisms such as IT.  

•   In relation to the busier periods of the year, the Committee was advised that quarter 4 
tended to be the pinch point when a number of key financial system audits were 
undertaken, although these were planned well in advance. It was hoped that the new 
structure would help alleviate the risks at this time of year.  

Page 8



•   The Committee was advised that the manager posts also involved day to day work tasks, 
this went right up to the Chief Auditor post dependant on the complexity and sensitivity 
of the work required.  

•   A Member noted that the CIPFA review had raised the need to meet demand for 
information and data auditing, and the Committee was advised that the team would be 
using a system called Ideal moving forward which would involve training and the building 
up of skills within the team. Data and information governance were noted as key areas 
across the whole of the organisation.  

•   A further risk highlighted by CIPFA was the reliance on the Head of Audit and Audit 
Manager roles which was hopefully mitigated through the addition of the Deputy Chief 
Auditor post and Audit and Fraud Lead posts. The Committee congratulated Selina 
Harlock on her appointment to the Deputy Chief Auditor role.  

•   A Member noted that the statement on page 141 of the reports pack should read ‘The 
Business Assurance Team vision is to be a…’ rather than ‘The Business Assurance Team 
vision is be a…’. The Member also suggested that the vision statements could be 
simplified.  

  
RESOLVED: 
That the report be noted. 
  

10 RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP UPDATE 
 The Committee received a report which provided an update on the Risk Management Group 

(RMG) meeting held on 7 November 2022. At that meeting the Group reviewed and commented 
on the Adults and Health directorate risk registers, the key risk themes of which were noted 
within the report.  The Group also reviewed the external audit carried out by Mazars in respect 
of the southern waste round re-organisation. It was agreed that an update on progress against 
actions would be presented to the RMG in March 2023. 
  
RESOLVED: 
That the report be noted.   
  

11 2022/23 BUSINESS ASSURANCE STRATEGY UPDATE (INCL. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN) 
 The Committee considered a report which outlined the Internal Audit, Risk Management, 

Assurance and Counter Fraud work being undertaken by the Business Assurance Team for the 
year ending 31 March 2023. The Council continued to work towards a combined assurance 
model, with Internal Audit operating as the third line of assurance. The 2022/23 Internal Audit, 
Risk Management, Assurance and Counter Fraud work plans were produced with reference to 
the strategic and directorate risk registers; and informed through discussion with Senior 
Leadership Teams for each directorate. 
  
During discussion, key points highlighted included: 

•   An additional audit on ‘Social Care – Placement and Panel decisions’ had been included 
on the audit plan following a request from the relevant Corporate Director for this area 
of work. 

•   Within Resources, the ‘Teachers Pensions – new system in place’ audit had been 
deferred to 2023/24 because of the new system being implemented. Processes and 
controls would be reviewed as the new system went live. 

•   The Chairman referred to paragraph 3.2 on page 157 of the reports pack and explained 
that more emphasis was needed on major change projects and the need to escalate 
them in terms of risk as they took place. It had become apparent that in a number of 
circumstances, a particular service had reviewed its risk ahead of certain projects, 
however had not taken in to account that the risk elevated during the time the project 

Page 9



was rolled out. 
•   In terms of the Community Boards audit, noted on page 164 of the reports pack as 

‘fieldwork in-progress’, the Chairman highlighted that the Constitution Working Group 
had been considering Community Boards, their governance and how they fit in to the 
Constitution. Should the audit identify any areas that should feed in to the Constitution 
the Chairman suggested they relay this to the Service Director for Democratic and Legal 
Services.  

•   The Chairman highlighted that there had been some flexibility given to services moving 
the timing of certain audits in the early years of the unitary authority, although the 
Committee’s position was now clear that Council services must be audited at the right 
time rather than at the time which was convenient to the service. It was noted that on 
occasion, internal auditors could help design processes for certain departments as part 
of the audit process.  

•   A Member raised concern around a number of the Social Care audits that had yet to start 
and was advised that it was the audit work that had not yet started, as this was planned 
across the year, rather than the work by the service itself. It was confirmed that the 
relevant Corporate and Service Directors had been liaised with and accepted the need 
for the audits. The timing had been agreed for the SEND Ofsted Improvement Plan 
Assurance audit later in the year to give the opportunity for the service to implement 
their improvement plan following the Ofsted inspection. The outcome of the audit would 
be reported back to the Committee in the usual manner within the completed audits 
within part 2 of a future agenda.  

•  Concern was also raised about legislative changes within Adult Social Care which would 
have a significant impact on service delivery. The Committee was assured that the scope 
of the work would be flexible and the audit team would always ensure that they were 
working to the most up to date legislation on any area of risk being focused on.  

•  Members were advised that in future the ‘other cases currently under investigation’ 
details noted on pages 162 and 163 of the agenda pack would be presented in a more 
interpretable manner as there was now a new system in place which would be able to 
generate reports and tables.  

•  The Chairman queried whether there were any proceeds of crime orders or 
compensation for the prosecution noted on page 162 of the reports pack. This would be 
looked in to further and reported back. 
ACTION: Chief Auditor to look in to details of the case further and report back to the 
Committee. 

•   Clarity was provided on external clients, Buckinghamshire & Milton Keynes Fire Authority 
were a long standing external client who were provided circa 100 days of internal audit 
resource. An academy had recently approached the Council to provide an internal audit 
service as well, and there had been similar approaches in the past. These were 
recognised as good income generating opportunities although required the internal 
resource to provide the service, which needed the new structure to be in place. 
Members noted that as a Council, providing this service to academies would also provide 
a measure of reassurance as to the education being provided by academies to ensure it 
was of a high standard. 

  
RESOLVED:  
That the report be noted. 
  

12 WORK PROGRAMME 
 The Committee noted that the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts should be ready for the meeting 

on 1 February, the annual Business Continuity Management Update and Risk and Business 
Continuity Management Strategy would also be presented to that meeting, along with a number 

Page 10



of other policies and the Contract Procedure Rules – waivers and breaches as noted on the work 
programme. 
  
The Treasury Management Strategy 23/24 would also be presented in February as would the 
Pension Fund Accounts 21/22 if available. The Chief Auditor would liaise with the Director of 
Legal and Democratic Services to establish when best to bring a report on updates to the 
Constitution. 
ACTION: Chief Auditor to add Constitution update to the work programme for the most 
appropriate meeting following consultation with the Service Director for Legal and Democratic 
Services. 
  
RESOLVED: 
That the latest Work Programme be noted. 
  

13 ACTION LOG 
 The Committee considered the latest action log as attached to the agenda pack and agreed that 

each of the actions that had been marked completed could be closed. These were: 
Action 2 - Treasury Management Annual Report; Action 4 – Business Assurance new team 
structure; and Action 7 – Treasury Management Training Session.  
  
RESOLVED: 
That the action log be noted. 
  

14 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 RESOLVED: 

That pursuant to Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of Minutes No 15, 16 and 17, on the grounds that they 
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
Act as defined as follows: 
Minute 15 – Confidential Minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee held on 27 
September 2022 
Minute 16 – 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and Audit 
Actions Summary Report 
Minute 17 – Action Log (confidential) 
  

15 CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES 
 RESOLVED: 

That the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2022 be approved as a 
correct record. 
  

16 2022/23 BUSINESS ASSURANCE STRATEGY UPDATE: COMPLETED AUDITS AND AUDIT ACTIONS 
SUMMARY REPORT 

 The Committee held a detailed discussion on the Summary of Completed Audits and Audit 
Action Tracker. 
  
RESOLVED: 
That the report be noted. 
  

17 ACTION LOG (CONFIDENTIAL) 
 The Committee considered the confidential action log and 

  
 

Page 11



RESOLVED: 
That the current Action Log (confidential) be noted. 
  

Page 12



 

 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 
Date:   1st February 2023 

Reference number:  N/A 

Title:    External Auditors Interim Annual Report 

Relevant councillor(s):  N/A 

Contact officer:   David Skinner (S151) 

Ward(s) affected:  N/A 

Recommendations:  The Committee are requested to note the findings in the report 
by the external auditor attached at Appendix A on the Council 
arrangement for securing Value for Money (VfM) in its use of 
resources, the recommendations made and management’s 
response. 

Reason for decision:  N/A 

Executive summary 

1.1 Under National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Practice regulations, external auditors are 
also required to make a Value for Money assessment to consider that local authorities 
have put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources.  

1.2 The report provides detail on Council’s overall arrangements, as well as key 
recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the 
audit. 

Background 

1.3 The NAO issued a new Code of Audit Practice which came into force on 1 April 2020 and 
applies to the 2020/21 audit.  The new approach to VfM re-focuses the work of auditors 
to provide more meaningful and more accessible annual reporting on VfM arrangements 
issues in key areas as summarised below;  

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

i. provide a sharper focus on reporting in the key areas of financial sustainability, 
governance, and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness; and  

ii. provide clearer recommendations to help local bodies improve their arrangements. 

1.4 Under the previous Code, auditors had only to undertake work on VfM where there was 
a potential significant risk and reporting was by exception. Whereas against the new 
Code, auditors are required to undertake work to provide a commentary against three 
criteria set by the NAO. 

i.  Financial sustainability: how the Council plans and manages its resources to 
ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

ii. Governance: how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and 
properly manages its risks; and 

iii. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Council uses 
information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 
delivers its services  

1.5 Grant Thornton’s conclusion of the Council’s Value for Money detailed assessment is 
provided in Appendix A and is summarised below.  

i. Financial Sustainability - There are no significant weaknesses identified and the 
one improvement recommendation around identifying and agreeing savings over 
the Medium-Term Financial Planning (MTFP) is already being implemented through 
enhancing our monitoring of ‘pipeline’ of future savings options and opportunities 
through additional reporting to CMT and Members commencing in 2023.   

ii. Governance – In total there are six improvement recommendations of which three 
have already been implemented and the status of remaining three are summarised 
below: 

a. Central register for member’s interest – This is work in progress and will be 
completed by March 23; 

b. Internal audit on associated companies – This will be added to the Q1 2023/24 
audit work plan; and 

c. Strengthening of Corporate Finance Team – This is work in progress.  The 
recently appointed Chief Accountant has started work and leading on the 
2020/21 audit and preparation of 2021/22 draft Statement of Accounts.  The 
Service Review for the Financial Control and Accounting Team has been 
prioritised which takes account of Growing our Own which will strengthen the 
team to build its resilience.  It is anticipated that the fully recruited team will be 
in place by the first quarter of the new financial year which will facilitate a more 
‘normal’ approach to be taken for future Statement of Accounts work. 

Page 14



 

iii. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness : The one improvement 
recommendation on Children’s services improvement plan is already work in 
progress.  The service has a clear plan in place and is working at pace on the areas 
of improvement identified. 

1.6 Significant weaknesses have been identified for the later two: Governance due to late 
and inaccurate production of draft Statement of Accounts for financial year 2020/21 and 
Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness due to Children’s Ofsted rating.   

 

Other options considered  

1.7 Not applicable 

Legal and financial implications 

1.8 Not directly related to this report. 

Corporate implications  

1.9 Not applicable 

Consultation and communication  

1.10 The report has been agreed with the Corporate Management Team 

Next steps and review  

1.11 Not applicable 

Background papers  

1.12 Not applicable 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 17

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

Training took place on 23/09/22 and involved directors, members of the shareholder committee and 
advisors to the committee. This covered roles and responsibilities as well as best practice in running a 
company. Training requirements for any new directors will be considered by the Service Director for Legal 
Services. Furthermore, conflicts of interest guidance for officers and members becoming directors has been 
produced based on national best practice and recent local government inspections.  This was discussed at 
the Shareholder Committee meeting on the 12/10/22 and formally to be adopted by the Committee in 
January 2023.

P
age 34



Commercial in confidence

Cabinet agreed to the setting up of a Shareholder Committee (sub-committee of cabinet) on 29/03/22 to
review and scrutinise the governance arrangements, financial plans, activities and performance of the
Council’s companies and joint ventures. The first meeting was held on the 19/07/22 and meets quarterly.
Terms of Reference were agreed at this meeting. To date the existing business plans and financial position
have been reviewed and the Committee will receive updated business plans prior to the start of the next
financial year. Furthermore, there was a deep dive around the finances of Consilio at its meeting on the
12/11/22. The shareholder Committee will report back to Council on at least an annual basis.

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

P
age 39



Commercial in confidence

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•

P
age 41

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Freports.ofsted.gov.uk%2Fprovider%2F44%2F825&data=05%7C01%7CHasina.Shah%40buckinghamshire.gov.uk%7Cae41e278baf84ba0857008dacc96105a%7C7fb976b99e2848e180861ddabecf82a0%7C0%7C0%7C638047242135303653%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=BJDzRWAncyXJvxUs%2F0vdntjrE7BVkXFqsGuTJd7TCto%3D&reserved=0


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•
•

•

•
•

•

•

•

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 45



P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

P
age 49



P
age 50



 

 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 
Date:  1st February 2023 

Reference number: N/A 

Title: Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24 

Relevant councillor(s): Cllr John Chilver, Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and  
Resources and Cllr Timothy Butcher, Deputy Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and  
Resources 

Author and/or contact officer: Julie Edwards 

Recommendations: The Audit and Governance Committee are asked to recommend the 
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2023/24 to Council to agree 
at its meeting on 22nd February 2023. 

The Audit and Governance Committee are asked to recommend the operational boundary 
for external borrowing, the authorised limit for external borrowing, the maturity structure 
of borrowing, the upper limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365 days and the 
liability benchmark to Council to agree at its meeting on 22nd February 2023. 

Executive summary 

1.1 The Council is required to approve a treasury management strategy statement 
before the start of each financial year. The table below is a summary of the Council’s 
borrowing position: 

£000 
1st April 
2020 

31st March 
2021 

31st March 
2022 

30th Dec 
2022 

31st March 
2023 

31st March 
2024 

PWLB1 
         
333,193  

         
286,459  

           
279,638  

      
263,692  

           
262,728  

         
255,728  

LOBO2 
           
30,000  

           
30,000  

             
30,000  

         
30,000  

             
30,000  

           
30,000  

Total 
         
363,193  

         
316,459  

           
309,638  

      
293,692  

           
292,728  

         
285,728  

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



 

¹ PWLB Public Works Loans Board. The PWLB is a statutory body, part of HM 
Treasury; its purpose is to lend money to local authorities.  

²LOBOs Lender Option Borrower Option.  LOBOs are long-term borrowing 
instruments which include an option for the lender to periodically revise the 
interest rate.  If the lender decides to revise the interest rate, the borrower then 
has the option to pay the revised interest rate or repay the loan. 

1.1 The treasury cash (investments) position is summarised below: 

£000 31st 
Dec 
2021 

31st 
March 
2022 

30th 
June 
2022 

30th 
Sept 
2022 

31st 
Dec 

2022 

31st 
March 
2023 

30th 
June 
2023 

Term Deposits         

UK Banks 
       
5,000  

        
5,000  

    
15,000  

    
15,000      5,000  

     
20,000  

    
20,000  

Overseas Banks 
       
5,000  

      
10,000  

    
10,000  

    
20,000  

    
30,000  

     
20,000  

    
20,000  

Building Societies              -                   -    
    
10,000  

    
10,000        -  

     
10,000  

    
10,000  

Local Authorities 
  
113,000  

    
103,000  

    
70,000  

    
75,000  

    
65,000  

     
55,000  

    
45,000  

UK Government              -                   -    
    
23,300    

    
24,200  

     
10,000  

    
40,000  

 
  
123,000  

    
118,000  

  
128,300  

  
120,000  

  
124,200  

  
115,000  

  
135,000  

Instant Access         

MMF 
    
62,360  

      
37,815  

    
78,750  

    
53,510  

    
52,060  

     
43,800  

    
65,100  

Property Fund         

CCLA 
    
21,418  

      
22,923  

    
24,122  

    
23,098  

    
19,522  

     
19,522  

    
19,522  

Total 
  
206,778  

    
178,738  

  
231,172  

  
196,608  

  
195,782  

  
178,322  

  
219,622  

 

1.2 The Council continues to pursue a strategy of keeping borrowing and investments 
below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, to reduce risk 
and keep external financing costs low. The Council will continue the strategy of 
internal borrowing while it makes sense to do so. In the current economic climate, it 
is considered appropriate to maintain a degree of liquidity to cover cash flow needs 
but the Council will also consider investing for periods of up to 12 months with high 
credit rated financial institutions, whilst investment rates remain elevated.  The 
Council is considering opportunities for investments with longer exposure, but also 
ensuring that there is sufficient liquidity to meeting any short-term significant costs 
that may arise. 

Page 52



 

1.3 The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee made clear at its November 2022 
meeting that further rate increases are in the pipeline and markets expect Bank Rate 
to peak at 4.5%-4.75%. Investing in 2023/24, is therefore likely to be conducted, first, 
in a rising interest rate environment, but also - potentially - a falling interest rate 
environment at the back-end of the financial year, depending on how quickly 
inflation falls back and how growth performs. 

1.4 The Council’s main objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low 
risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those 
costs over the period for which funds are required. The continuation of the Council’s 
strategy of using surplus cash instead of external borrowing, keeping external 
financing costs low.  The Council is actively reviewing opportunities for rescheduling 
long term debt. 

1.5 The only proposed change to the 2023/24 TMSS compared to the 2022/23 TMSS is to 
amend the section for investments with other local authorities so that the 
investment can only be placed with the prior approval of the Council Leader or 
deputies in the case of leave, the Chief Executive and the Service Director of Finance. 
Furthermore, if a local authority that the Council has invested in subsequently issues 
a section 114 or is given a capitalisation directive, or any other untoward financial 
event experienced by an authority who the Council held an investment in will be 
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee at the earliest opportunity. 

 

Content of report 

1.6 In line with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice for Treasury Management and the Council’s Financial Procedures (part of 
the constitution), this Council is required to submit a treasury management strategy 
statement for the following financial year to the Audit and Governance Committee 
to consider on 1st February 2023, prior to the Council agreeing the strategy at its 
meeting on 22nd February 2023.  The draft Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for 2023/24 is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. The strategy for 
2023/24 covers the current treasury position, treasury indicators which limit the 
treasury risk and activities of the Council, prospects for interest rates, the borrowing 
strategy, policy on borrowing in advance of need, debt rescheduling, the investment 
strategy, creditworthiness policy and the policy on use of external service providers. 

1.7 The Code of Practice defines Treasury Management as: The management of the 
organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital 
market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. 
Treasury management is conducted within the framework of the Chartered Institute 

Page 53



 

of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: 
Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code). 

1.8 The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in 
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available 
to meet this service activity and the Council’s capital strategy. This will involve both 
the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation 
of appropriate borrowing facilities. The Council is asked to approve the following 
limits to borrowing activity: 

The operational boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not 
normally expected to exceed.   

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
Operational boundary £m 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Debt 320 410 410 410 

Other long-term liabilities 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 

Total 327.5 417.5 417.5 417.5 

 

1.9 The authorised limit for external debt. This is a key prudential indicator and 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a legal limit 
beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be approved by full 
Council.  If there is a possibility that the Council is likely to exceed the agreed 
authorised limit, then full Council approval would be required in advance.  It reflects 
the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short 
term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/25 
Authorised limit £m 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Debt 420 510 510 510 

Other long-term liabilities 10 10 10 10 

Total 430 520 520 520 

 

1.10 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s 
exposure to large, fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for 
upper and lower limits.   

 

Page 54



 

Maturity structure of borrowing 2023/24 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 18% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 17% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 36% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 34% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 34% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 32% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 20% 

More than 50 years  0% 12% 

 

1.11 Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Council to invest its 
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury 
investments before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield.  The Council’s 
objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and 
return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving 
unsuitably low investment income. 

1.12 The only proposed change to the 2023/24 TMSS compared to the 2022/23 TMSS is to 
amend the section for investments with other local authorities so that the 
investments can only be placed with the prior approval of the Council Leader, the 
Chief Executive and the Service Director of Finance or deputies in the case of leave. 
Furthermore, if a local authority that the Council has invested in subsequently issues 
a section 114 or is given a capitalisation directive, or any other untoward financial 
event experienced by an authority who the Council held an investment in will be 
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee at the earliest opportunity. 

1.13 The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limit for the 
total principal funds invested for greater than 365 days. These limits are set with 
regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale 
of an investment and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

Upper limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365 days 
£m 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Principal sums invested for 
longer than 365 days 

£25m £25m £25m 

Current investments on 31st 
December 2022 in excess of 
1 year maturing in each 
year 

£0m £10m £0m 

 

1.14 CIPFA published revised Treasury Management Code and Prudential Code on 20th  
December 2021 which is required to be formally adopted in the 2023/24 financial 
year. The revised Code includes a requirement for the Council to adopt a new 
prudential indicator for the debt liability benchmark treasury indicator to support 
the financing risk management of the capital financing requirement.  The Council’s 
Liability Benchmark chart for the following 10 years is attached as Appendix 2. It 
show the existing loans debt outstanding, the loans Capital Financing Requirement, 
the net loans requirement and the liability benchmark.  The liability benchmark is the 
net loans required plus the short-term liquidity allowance. Any years where actual 
loans are less than the benchmark indicate a future borrowing requirement; any 
years where actual loans outstanding exceed the benchmark represent an 
overborrowed position.  Buckinghamshire Council’s liability benchmark tracks closely 
to the net loans requirement over the forthcoming years. 

Legal and financial implications 

1.15 The publication of an annual strategy, a mid-year treasury report and an annual 
treasury management report conforms to best practice as required by the Code of 
Practice CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services. A quarterly updated is 
reported to the Treasury Management Group.  

 

Corporate implications  

1.16 There are none. 

Page 56



Appendix 1 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2023/24 

1.1 Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised during 
the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to ensure that 
this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies 
are invested in low-risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk 
appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. The second 
main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s capital plans. 
These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer-
term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This 
management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or short-term loans or using longer-
term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn 
may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
The contribution the treasury management function makes to the Council is critical, as the balance 
of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet spending commitments 
as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects. The treasury operations 
will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits 
affecting the available budget. Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, it 
is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect 
result in a loss to the General Fund Balance. 
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury function, these 
activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising usually from capital expenditure), 
and are separate from the day-to-day treasury management activities. Investments held for service 
purposes or for commercial profit are considered in the Capital and Investment Strategy rather 
than the Treasury Management Strategy document. This will cover in detail the capital plans for 
the Council (including the capital related prudential indicators), the minimum revenue provision 
(MRP) policy and non-financial investments (such as Property). 

1.2 Reporting requirements 

 
 

Page 57

Appendix 1



 

 

 

1.2.1 Treasury Management reporting 
 
The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main treasury 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.  
 

a. Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first, and 
most important report is forward looking and covers: 
• the treasury management strategy, (how the investments and borrowings are to be 

organised), including treasury indicators; and  
• an investment strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be managed). 

 
b. A mid-year treasury management report – Receiving this report is delegated to the 

Audit and Governance Committee, it is primarily a progress report and will update 
members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and 
whether any policies require revision.  
 

c. An annual treasury report – Receiving this report is delegated to the Audit and 
Governance Committee, it is a backward-looking review document and provides 
details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury 
operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. 

   

1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2023/24 

The strategy for 2023/24 covers: 
 

• the current treasury position; 
• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
• prospects for interest rates; 
• the borrowing strategy; 
• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 
• debt rescheduling; 
• the investment strategy; 
• creditworthiness policy; and 
• the policy on use of external service providers. 

 
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, DLUHC Investment 
Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code. 

1.4 Training 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with responsibility for 
treasury management receive adequate training in treasury management. This especially applies 
to members responsible for scrutiny. Members of the Audit and Governance Committee attended 
a Treasury Management training session in November 2022 and further training will be arranged 
as required. The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed. 

Page 58



 

 

 

Representatives from the Council’s treasury management advisors have also met and discussed 
treasury management activities with the Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and Resources 
and the Deputy Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and Resources. 

1.5 Treasury management consultants 

The Council uses Link Group, Treasury solutions as its external treasury management advisors. The 
Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the 
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon the services of our 
external service providers.  
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

 

 

2 The Capital Financing Requirement 2022/23 – 2024/25 
The Capital and Investment Strategy covers in detail the capital expenditure plans for the 
Council (including the capital related prudential indicators), the minimum revenue 
provision (MRP) policy and non-financial investments (such as Property). 

2.1 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is 
essentially a measure of the Council’s indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need. 
Any capital expenditure which has not immediately been paid for through a revenue or 
capital resource, will increase the CFR.  

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each 
asset’s life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used. 

 

£m 2021/22 
Actual 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 
 571.49 570.42 667.48 656.90 637.70 

 

Page 60



 

 

 

3 Borrowing  
The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in accordance with 
the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and 
the Council’s capital strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where 
capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers the 
relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the annual 
investment strategy. 

3.1 Current portfolio position 

1.1 The table below is a summary of the Council’s borrowing position: 

£000 
1st April 
2020 

31st March 
2021 

31st March 
2022 

30th Dec 
2022 

31st March 
2023 

31st March 
2024 

PWLB1 
         
333,193  

         
286,459  

           
279,638  

      
263,692  

           
262,728  

         
255,728  

LOBO2 
           
30,000  

           
30,000  

             
30,000  

         
30,000  

             
30,000  

           
30,000  

Total 
         
363,193  

         
316,459  

           
309,638  

      
293,692  

           
292,728  

         
285,728  

 

The Council’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The table shows the actual 
external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement - 
CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  

£m 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

External Debt 
Debt at 1 April   316.46 309.64 292.72 385.73 378.63 
Expected change in Debt  -6.82 -16.92 93.01 -7.10 -7.19 
Actual gross debt at 31 
March  309.64 292.72 385.73 378.63 371.44 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 571.49 570.42 667.48 656.90 652.67 

Under / (over) borrowing 261.85 277.70 281.75 278.27 281.23 
Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that 
the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits. One of these is that the Council 
needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR 
in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2023/24 and the following two 
financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years but ensures 
that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. The 2023/24 and later 
financial years includes the £100m potential borrowing that Council has delegated to Cabinet 
where there exists a robust and financially viable business case.  

The Service Director of Finance reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  

Page 61



 

 

 

3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

The operational boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 
expected to exceed. In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower 
or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing by 
other cash resources. The total estimate includes the £100m potential borrowing that Council 
has delegated to Cabinet where there exists a robust and financially viable business case. 

Operational boundary £m 
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 
Debt 320 410 410 410 
Other long-term liabilities 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 
Total 327.5 417.5 417.5 417.5 

 

The authorised limit for external debt. This is a key prudential indicator and represents a 
control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a legal limit beyond which 
external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be approved by full Council. If there is a 
possibility that the Council is likely to exceed the agreed authorised limit, then full Council 
approval would be required in advance. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not 
desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ 
plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised. 

2. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit: 

Authorised Limit £m 
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 
Debt 420 510 510 510 
Other long-term liabilities 10 10 10 10 
Total 430 520 520 520 

 

Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to 
large, fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits. The 
Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limits: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 

 

 

Maturity structure of borrowing 2023/24 
 Lower Upper 
Under 12 months 0% 18% 
12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 
2 years to 5 years 0% 17% 
5 years to 10 years 0% 36% 
10 years to 20 years  0% 34% 
20 years to 30 years  0% 34% 
30 years to 40 years  0% 32% 
40 years to 50 years 0% 20% 
40 years to 50 years  0% 12% 

 

Page 63



 

 

 

3.3 Prospects for interest rates 

Part of the Link Group service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. 
Link provided the following forecasts on 19th December 2022. These are forecasts for certainty 
rates, gilt yields plus 0.8%. 
 

 
 
Bank rate is currently 3.5%, it is forecast to reach a peak of 4.5% in the second half of 2023. 
 

3.4        Borrowing strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means that the capital 
borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded with loan debt as 
cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary 
measure. This strategy is prudent as medium and longer dated borrowing rates are expected to fall 
from their current levels.  

Against this background and risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted with the 
2023/24 treasury operations. The Service Director of Finance will monitor interest rates in financial 
markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances: 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing rates, then 

borrowing will be postponed. 
 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in borrowing rates than 

that currently forecast, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than 
they are projected to be in the next few years. 
 

Any decisions will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee and the Treasury 
Management Group at the next available opportunity. The Treasury Management Group 
comprises the Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and Resources, the Deputy Cabinet 
Member for Accessible Housing and Resources, Service Director of Finance and treasury 
management officers. 

3.5 Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to profit from the 
investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within forward 
approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates and will be considered carefully to ensure that 
value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  

Page 64



 

 

 

 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal and 
subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism.  

3.6 Debt rescheduling 

Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur as there is still a 
very large difference between premature redemption rates and new borrowing rates. If 
rescheduling was done, it will be reported to the Treasury Management Group and the Audit and 
Governance Committee.  
 

3.7 New financial institutions as a source of borrowing and / or types of borrowing  

Currently the PWLB Certainty Rate is set at gilts + 80 basis points for borrowing. However, 
consideration may still need to be given to sourcing funding from the following sources for 
the following reasons: 
 

• Local authorities (primarily shorter dated maturities out to 3 years or so – still 
cheaper than the Certainty Rate). 

• Financial institutions (primarily insurance companies and pension funds but also 
some banks, out of forward dates where the objective is to avoid a “cost of carry” 
or to achieve refinancing certainty over the next few years). 

• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created to 
enable local authority bond issues. 

 

3.8 Approved sources of long- and short-term borrowing 

The table below lists the sources of long and short term borrowing, the bullet indicates  
whether the source of borrowing could be a fixed rate of interest or a variable rate of interest.  
 
On Balance Sheet                                                            Fixed    Variable   
PWLB                                                                                     • • 
UK Municipal bond agency             • • 
Local authorities               • • 
Banks                                    • • 
Pension funds                   • • 
Insurance companies                • • 
UK Infrastructure Bank                                                       • • 
 
Market (long-term)                                                          • • 
Market (temporary)                                                           • • 
Market (LOBOs)                                                                • • 
Stock issues                                                                        • •  
 
Local temporary                                                                 • •  

Page 65



 

 

 

Local Bonds                                                                       • 
Local authority bills                                                     • • 
Overdraft                                                                             • 
Negotiable Bonds                                                              • • 
 
Internal (capital receipts & revenue balances)             • • 
Commercial Paper                                                                           •   
Medium Term Notes                                                                      •   
Finance leases                                                                    • •  
 

Page 66



 

 

 

4 Annual Investment Strategy  

4.1 Investment policy – management of risk 

The Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) and CIPFA have extended the 
meaning of ‘investments’ to include both financial and non-financial investments. This report deals 
solely with treasury (financial) investments, (as managed by the treasury management team). Non-
financial investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the Capital 
and Investment Strategy, (a separate report). 

  
The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: - 

• DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 
• CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral 

Guidance Notes 2021 (“the Code”)  
• CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2021   

 
The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and then yield, 
(return). The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity and with the Council’s risk appetite. In 
the current economic climate, it is considered appropriate to maintain a degree of liquidity to cover 
cash flow needs but the Council will also consider investing for periods up to 12 months with high 
credit rated financial institutions, whilst investment rates remain elevated. 
 
The above guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA places a high priority on the management of risk. 
This Council has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk and defines its risk appetite by the 
following means: - 
 

1. Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of highly 
creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 
concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the short term 
and long-term ratings.  

 
2. Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an 

institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on 
both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political 
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of 
information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this consideration the 
Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as 
“credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  

 
3. Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other 

such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to establish the most robust 
scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 

 
4. This Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the treasury 

management team are authorised to use.  
 

Page 67



 

 

 

• Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to a 
maturity limit of one year or have less than a year left to run to maturity if originally 
they were classified as being non-specified investments solely due to the maturity 
period exceeding one year.  

• Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for 
periods more than one year, and/or are more complex instruments which require 
greater consideration by members and officers before being authorised for use.  

 
5. Non-specified and loan investment limits. The maximum exposure of the total 

treasury management investment portfolio to non-specified treasury management 
investments of £100m.  

 
6. Lending limits, (amounts and maturity), for each counterparty will be set through 

applying the matrix table in paragraph 4.2. 
 

7. Transaction limits are set for each type of investment in 4.2. 
 

8. This Council will set a limit for its investments which are invested for longer than 365 
days, (see paragraph 4.4).  

 
9. Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a specified 

minimum sovereign rating, (see paragraph 4.3). 
 

10. This Council has engaged external consultants, (see paragraph 1.5), to provide 
expert advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and 
yield, given the risk appetite of this Council in the context of the expected level of 
cash balances and need for liquidity throughout the year. 

 
11. All investments will be denominated in sterling. 

 
However, this Council will also pursue value for money in treasury management and will monitor 
the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for investment performance, 
(see paragraph 4.5). Regular monitoring of investment performance will be carried out during the 
year. 
 
Changes in risk management policy from last year. 
The above criteria are unchanged from last year.   

4.2 Creditworthiness policy 

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by the Link Group utilising credit ratings 
from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit 
ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  

• “watches” and “outlooks” from credit rating agencies; 
• Credit Default Swaps spreads that may give early warning of changes in credit ratings; 
• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 

 

Page 68



 

 

 

This approach combines credit ratings, and any assigned Watches and Outlooks in a weighted 
scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of Credit Default Swaps spreads. The end-
product of this is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of 
counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to determine the suggested duration 
for investments. The Council will, therefore, use counterparties within the following durational 
bands:  
 

• Yellow 5 years * 
• Dark pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.25 
• Light pink       5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.5 
• Purple  2 years 
• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 
• Orange 1 year 
• Red  6 months 
• Green  100 days   
• No colour  not to be used  

 
Typically, the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short-term rating (Fitch or 
equivalents) of F1 and a long-term rating of A-. There may be occasions when the counterparty 
ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may still be used.  In 
these instances, consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical 
market information, to support their use. 
 
All credit ratings will be monitored daily. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all three 
agencies through its use of the Link creditworthiness service.  

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the 
Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn 
immediately. 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in Credit Default Swap spreads against the iTraxx European Financials 
benchmark and other market data daily. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition, the Council will also 
use market data and market information, as well as information on any external support for banks 
to help support its decision-making process.  
 

 

  Colour (and long-
term rating 

where 
applicable) 

Counterparty  

Limit £m 

Transaction 
limit £m 

Time  

limit 

Banks * yellow £20m  £10m 5 years 

Banks  purple £20m  £10m 2 years 

Y Pi1 Pi2 P B O R G N/C
1 1.25 1.5 2 3 4 5 6 7

Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 2yrs Up to 1yr Up to 1yr Up to 6mths Up to 100days No Colour

Page 69



 

 

 

Banks  orange £20m  £10m 1 year 

Banks – part nationalised blue £20m  £10m 1 year 

Banks and Building Societies red £10m  £5m 6 months 

Banks and Building Societies green £10m  £5m 100 days 

Banks  No colour Not to be 
used 

- - 

Limit 3 category – Council’s 
banker (where “No Colour”) 

- Minimal 
balances 

Minimal 
balances 

1 day 

Debt Management Agency 
Deposit Facility (UK 
Government) 

UK sovereign 
rating  

Unlimited £100m 6 months 

Local authorities (sector limit 
£150m) 

n/a £10m £10m 5 years 

Housing associations (sector 
limit £25m) 

Colour bands £5m  £5m As per 
colour 
band 

  Fund rating** Counterparty  

Limit 

 Time  

Limit 

Money Market Funds CNAV1  AAA £30m   liquid 

Money Market Funds LVNAV2  AAA £30m   liquid 

Money Market Funds VNAV3 AAA £30m   liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds 
with a credit score of 1.25 

 Dark pink / AAA £30m   liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds 
with a credit score of 1.50 

Light pink / AAA £30m  liquid 

 

* The yellow category is for UK government debt or its equivalent. 
** Fund ratings are different to individual counterparty ratings. 
CNAV1 – Constant Net Asset Value 
LVNAV2 – Low Volatility Net Asset Value  
VNAV3 – Variable Net Asset Value 
 
 
Creditworthiness. 
Significant levels of downgrades to Short- and Long-Term credit ratings have not materialised 
since the crisis in March 2020. In the main, where they did change, any alterations were 
limited to Outlooks. However, more recently the United Kingdom sovereign debt rating has 
been placed on Negative Outlook by the three major rating agencies. It is possible that the UK 

Page 70



 

 

 

sovereign debt rating will be downgraded, the Council will not set a minimum rating for the 
United Kingdom.  
 
Credit Default Swaps prices 
Although bank Credit Default Swaps prices, (these are market indicators of credit risk), are 
currently at average levels, sentiment can easily shift, so it will remain important to undertake 
continual monitoring of all aspects of risk and return in the current circumstances.  
 
Other Local Authorities 
The Council will invest with other local authorities, the investment can only be placed with the 
prior approval of the Council Leader, the Chief Executive and the Service Director of Finance or 
deputies in the case of leave. If a local authority that the Council has invested in subsequently 
issues a section 114 or is given a capitalisation directive, or any other untoward financial event 
experienced by an authority who the Council held an investment in will be reported to the Audit 
and Governance Committee at the earliest opportunity. 
 
Buckinghamshire Council’s Bank 
 
The Council frequently receives cash without prior notification from the sender. There is a 
possibility that a large receipt or several smaller receipts could be received once the daily treasury 
dealing process is completed resulting in overnight cash at the Council’s bank exceeding the 
counterparty limit as defined by the treasury management strategy. If this occurs the cash will be 
invested with other counterparties in line with the treasury management strategy the following 
day.  
 

4.3 Other limits 

Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment portfolio to 
non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors.  

a) Non-specified treasury management investment limit. The maximum total exposure 
of treasury management investments to non-specified treasury management 
investments is limited to £100m treasury management investment portfolio.  

b) Country limit. The Council will only use approved counterparties from the UK and from 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch (or equivalent). 
The cash limit for AAA sovereign rated countries is £20m per country and £40m in 
aggregate – Australia, Denmark, Germany, Luxembourg, Netherlands, Norway, 
Singapore, Sweden and Switzerland are AAA. These lists will be added to, or deducted 
from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

c) Other limits. In addition: 

• limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 

• sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness. 

4.4  Investment strategy 

Page 71



 

 

 

In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e., rates for investments up to 12 
months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for longer periods. While most cash 
balances are required to manage the ups and downs of cash flow, where cash sums can be 
identified that could be invested for longer periods, the value to be obtained from longer term 
investments will be carefully assessed.  
Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater than 365 days. 
These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for 
early sale of an investment and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 
 
The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limit:  
 

Upper limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365 days 
£m 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Principal sums invested for 
longer than 365 days 

£25m £25m £25m 

Current investments on 31st 
December 2022 more than 1 
year maturing in each year 

£0m £10m £0m 

 

4.5  Investment performance / risk benchmarking 

This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment performance of its 
investment portfolio of overnight, 7-day SONIA (Sterling Overnight Index Average) compounded 
rate.  

4.6  End of year investment report 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as part of its Annual 
Treasury Report to the Audit and Governance Committee.  

4.7  External fund managers  

£19.5m of the Council’s funds are externally managed in a pooled property fund by CCLA (Churches, 
Charities and Local Authorities). A significant proportion of the Council’s funds are invested in liquid 
Money Market Funds MMF), there is a limit of £30m per MMF but no overall sector limit. 
 
The Council fully appreciates the importance of monitoring the activity and resultant performance 
of its appointed external fund manager. To aid this assessment, the Council is provided with a suite 
of regular reporting from its managers.  

 
Related Matters 

The CIPFA Code requires the Council to include the following in its treasury management 
strategy. 

Page 72



 

 

 

Financial Derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives 
embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g., interest rate 
collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase income at the expense of greater 
risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits). The general power of competence in Section 1 of 
the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of 
standalone financial derivatives (i.e., those that are not embedded into a loan or 
investment). 

The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures 
and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level of the 
financial risks that the Council is exposed to. Additional risks presented, such as credit 
exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the 
overall level of risk. Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and 
forward starting transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they 
present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy. The 
Council will only use derivatives for risk management purposes, not for speculative 
purposes. 

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the 
approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit rating for derivative 
exposures. An allowance for credit risk will count against the counterparty credit limit and 
the relevant foreign country limit. 

In line with the CIPFA Code, the Council will seek external advice and will consider that 
advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure it fully understands the 
implications. After undertaking due diligence and seeking advice from the Council’s treasury 
advisers, the Council will only enter into financial derivatives if there is a strong case and the 
proposal is approved by the Cabinet Member for Accessible Housing and Resources. The 
Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee will be notified before the Council enters 
into financial derivatives. 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



£0

£100,000

£200,000

£300,000

£400,000

£500,000

£600,000

£700,000

£800,000

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

T
o

ta
l 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
(£

'0
0

0
)

Liability Benchmark

PWLB Loans Market Loans (excl LOBO loans)
LOBO Loans Short Term inc LA Temporary Borrowing (<1 year)
Variable rate loans Existing Loan Debt Outstanding
Net Loans Requirement (forecast net loan debt) Loans CFR
Liability Benchmark (Gross Loans Requirement)

P
age 75

A
ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit and Governance Committee  
Date:  1 February 2023 

Reference number:  N/A 

Title:  Risk Management Group Update 

Cabinet Member(s):  N/A 

Contact officer:  Maggie Gibb, Head of Business Assurance (& Chief 
Internal Auditor) 

Ward(s) affected:  N/A 

Recommendations:  Members are recommended to note the report. 

Reason for decision:  Summarise why the recommended option is preferred 

 

1. Executive summary 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the Risk Management Group 
(RMG) meeting held on 16 December 2022. 

1.2 The Council’s Risk Management Framework including the Terms of Reference for the 
Risk Management Group was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in 
June 2021. 

2. Content of report 

2.1 The Corporate Director for Children’s Services attended the meeting along with the 
Development Manager, Head of Finance and Service Director for Education.  

2.2 The Children’s Services directorate has a well-established Risk Escalation Framework, 
with risk being a standing item at the senior leadership team meetings. All Risk 
Escalation Frameworks are due for review and update during Q4 of 2022/23 to 
ensure they remain fit for purpose. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



 

2.3 Since joining Buckinghamshire Council in September 2022, the Corporate Director 
for Children’s Services has engaged in a thorough review of the strategic, service, 
and key financial risks within his directorate in conjunction with the Corporate Risk 
Management team. 

2.4 Since the Service last presented to Risk Management Group, the Service has been 
subject to four regulatory inspections. In December 2021, Ofsted conducted their 
Inspecting Local Authority Children’s Services (ILACS) reinspection of services for 
children in need of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers. This 
inspection found that Buckinghamshire was no longer ‘Inadequate’, and the overall 
judgement of Children’s Services was ‘requires improvement to be good’. 

2.5 The key risk themes were as follows: 

CS-CSC-03 Recruitment & Retention - IF we are unable to attract, retain and develop 
a workforce that is competent, confident, motivated and works togethers in business-
critical roles THEN children will not receive the support they need leaving vulnerable 
children at greater risk of poorer outcomes. In addition, capacity to improve services 
will be compromised and may hinder our ambition to be good. 

CS-CSC-10 Unregulated Placements - IF there is not central Government intervention 
in the external placements market in line with the recommendations of the Care 
Review, THEN continued shortage of supply will lead to further excessive costs, poor 
placement choice, more Buckinghamshire children being placed further away from the 
county, further unregulated placements being made and poor outcomes. 

CS-CSC-14 Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children - IF the government continues 
to direct the Council through the mandated National Transfer Scheme, THEN this will 
place further pressure on our children in care and leaving care teams and as a result 
will hinder our ambition to be good. 

CS-CSC-18 Placement Sufficiency - IF we fail to develop a Placement Sufficiency 
Strategy that accurately reflects the current position and clearly articulates the 
service’s plans to increase the availability of provision for our children and young 
people THEN we will not meet their needs or provide them with a safe place to live 
and thrive within Buckinghamshire. 

CS-E-07 SEND Improvements - IF we do not make sufficient progress against the 
Written Statement of Action (WSOA) THEN this will impact on the quality of services 
provided to children and families and create reputational damage to the council. 

CS-E-13 Government policy changes - IF changes in government policy place any 
additional unfunded burden on our council, THEN the service will have limited capacity 
to deliver statutory functions. 

 

Page 78



 

2.6 Children’s Services key financial risk themes were summarised as follows: 

CS-KF-01 Debt Management - If there is an inability to implement efficient debt 
recovery then this will create a pressure on service budgets. This includes debts that 
are incorrectly raised to the wrong debtor or for incorrect amounts and debts raised 
with other public sector agencies such as other LAs and the CCG. 

CS-KF-02 Children’s Social Care increased demand and unit costs - If increased 
demand for Children’s Services continues at a rate which outstrips demand growth 
built into future budgets, then this will create additional budget pressures leading to 
requirements to reduce services in other areas. Increased costs may arise due to 
increases in demand and/or increases in average unit costs. 

CS-KF-03 SEND increased demand and unit costs - Numbers of pupils needing 
Education, Health, and Care Plans (EHCPs) are projected to increase over the medium 
term.  If demand for placements in specialist provision continues to increase, there is 
a risk that the High Needs Budget will continue to overspend and the DSG deficit will 
increase. 

CS-KF-05 Maintained school’s financial issues - If schools get into financial difficulty, 
then there is a risk that the LA will need to write off any deficits for schools that are 
rated Inadequate by Ofsted and are required to convert to academy status with a 
sponsor. 

CS-KF-06 Financial Management Culture - If a strong financial management culture is 
not in place within Children’s Services, then there is increased risk of overspend. 

CS-KF-09 Payment Performance - If invoice payments are not made in a timely way 
there will be an increase in complaints and reduced reputation with external suppliers. 

CS-KF-10 Agency Staffing Costs - IF we are unable to attract and retain permanent 
staff THEN our reliance on agency staff will continue to create pressures within staffing 
budgets. 

CS-KF-11 Loss of School Improvement Monitoring and Brokerage Grant - IF the 
council is unable to agree de-delegation of funds from maintained schools, THEN there 
is a risk that the council will not be able to fund core school improvement activity. 

CS-KF-12 Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children - IF the government continues 
to direct the council under the National Transfer Scheme, THEN this will increase the 
financial burden on the council 

2.7 The risks were discussed in detail, as well as the mitigating actions being challenged by 
the members. 

2.8 Risks which had been de-escalated or closed were included in the report from the 
Children’s Services directorate. 

Page 79



 

2.9 The Service Director for Highways and the Procurement Lead and Mobilisation 
Director attended the meeting to provide the Risk Management Group with a detailed 
update on the transition of the highways contract from a single provider to an alliance 
partnership to take effect from 1 April 2023. The key risks and mitigating actions were 
presented to RMG, and numerous member questions were answered. 

2.10 An independent review is also being carried out by Mazars to provide assurance over 
the effectiveness of the transition to the new arrangement, and the findings will be 
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee at a future meeting. 

3. Other options considered  

3.1 This should include information on the pros and cons of each option. 

4. Legal and financial implications 

4.1 None. 

5. Corporate implications  

None 

6. Local councillors & community boards consultation & views 

6.1 N/A. 

7. Communication, engagement & further consultation  

7.1 N/A. 

8. Next steps and review  

8.1 The next meeting of the Risk Management Group is to be held on 30 January 2023. 

9. Background papers  

None 

Page 80



 

 

 
Audit and Governance Committee  
Date:  1 February 2023 

Reference number:  N/A 

Title:  2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update (incl. 
Internal Audit Plan) 

Cabinet Member(s):  N/A 

Contact officer:  Maggie Gibb, Head of Business Assurance (& Chief 
Auditor) 

Ward(s) affected:  N/A 

Recommendations:  Members are recommended to note the report 

Reason for decision:  N/A 

 

1. Executive summary 

1.1 The report outlines the Internal Audit, Risk Management, Business Continuity, 
Assurance and Counter Fraud work being undertaken by the Business Assurance Team 
for the year ending 31 March 2023. 

1.2 The Council continues to work towards a combined assurance model, with Internal 
Audit operating as the third line of assurance. The 2022/23 Internal Audit, Risk 
Management, Assurance and Counter Fraud work plans were produced with 
reference to the strategic and directorate risk registers; and informed through 
discussion with Senior Leadership Teams for each directorate.  

2. Content of report 

2.1 The Business Assurance Strategy; including the Internal Audit Plan was agreed by the 
Audit Board and by the Audit and Governance Committee in July 2022. Quarterly 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



 

reporting to directorate leadership teams/ boards, CMT and the Audit Board continue 
to take place which enables us to keep work plans under continuous review to reflect 
emerging risks and priorities across the Council. We also seek the views of the 
directorates on the work of the Business Assurance Team to enable continuous 
improvement and ensure that we are meeting the needs and expectations of the 
organisation as best we can. 

2.2 Delivery of the Business Assurance work plans help ensure that there is an appropriate 
governance and control framework in place and that risk management is embedded 
across the Council to enable the achievement of set objectives. The Internal Audit Plan 
continues to be dynamic in nature with activities reviewed and realigned on a regular 
basis to take account of new, emerging and changing risks and priorities. 

2.3 Progress against the approved Business Assurance Strategy has been presented to, 
and agreed by, the Audit Board (S151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and Director of 
Legal Services). 

3. Other options considered  

3.1 N/A. 

4. Legal and financial implications 

4.1 None. 

5. Corporate implications  

5.1 None. 

6. Local councillors & community boards consultation & views 

6.1 N/A 

7. Communication, engagement & further consultation  

7.1 N/A. 

8. Next steps and review  

8.1 An update on delivery of the Business Assurance Strategy and a summary of the 
internal audit output will be presented as a standing agenda item at Audit and 
Governance Committee meetings. 

Page 82



 

9. Background papers  

9.1 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy and Internal Audit Plan. 

10. Your questions and views (for key decisions) 

10.1 If you have any questions about the matters contained in this report please get in 
touch with the author of this report. If you have any views that you would like the 
cabinet member to consider please inform the democratic services team. This can be 
done by telephone 01296 382343 or email democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

 

Page 83

mailto:democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL 

Business Assurance Update 

Including Progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 

 

 

 

Maggie Gibb 

Head of Business Assurance (& Chief Internal Auditor) 

February 2023 

P
age 85

A
ppendix 



2 
 

 

1 Contents 

1. Introduction .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Resources ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

3. Risk Management ................................................................................................................................................................................. 5 

4. Business Continuity Management (BCM) ............................................................................................................................................... 7 

5. Internal Audit ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

6. Business Assurance ............................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

7. Counter Fraud ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

8. Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Activity ................................................................................................................................. 17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 86



3 
 

1. Introduction  

1.2 The Business Assurance Team is responsible for delivering the Council’s Risk Management, Assurance, Internal Audit, Counter Fraud, 

Insurance and Business Continuity services. The team operates under the Service Director for Legal and Democratic Services within the 

Deputy Chief Executive Directorate. The team has continued to work towards implementing the Council’s Assurance and Risk Strategy 

through delivery of work programmes which include; assurance reviews of the Council’s financial and operational systems, computer 

audit reviews, corporate and social housing fraud investigations, fraud awareness, corporate governance and risk management reviews, 

and compliance reviews to check adherence to policies, procedures and systems. 

1.2 This report outlines the work carried out by the Business Assurance Team for FY 2022/23 to date.  The Business Assurance work plans 

continue to be dynamic in nature as they remain flexible and evolve throughout the year to reflect; the changing risks faced by the 

Council, the maturity of the assurance framework and to meet the needs of unplanned demands and other emerging priorities. Quarterly 

updates on Business Assurance activities continue to be presented to each directorate leadership team providing them with an overview 

of the Internal Audit and other assurance activities including progress on implementation of audit actions; and a risk management update 

on escalated risks with status of risk reviews.  

2. Resources  
2.1 The new Business Assurance structure went ‘live’ from 1st November (see below). We continue to resource work plans with a mix of 

in-house staff and a partnership arrangement with the APEX London Audit Framework. This arrangement enables us to request specialist 

resource such as IT auditors and contract auditors, whilst allowing for a flexible approach that enables us to respond swiftly to urgent 

requests for resource such as for investigations.  

P
age 87



4 
 

 

Vacant Post 

P
age 88



5 
 

 

3. Risk Management 
3.1 Work has continued embedding risk management across Council with all Directorates ensuring that risks are identified and uploaded 

onto Pentana, the corporate risk management system in a timely manner as well as horizon scanning and keeping a watching brief on 

emerging risks. Following the implementation of the new Business Assurance structure and recent recruitment, the new Risk Lead has 

joined the team Business Assurance and supporting the Risk and Business Continuity Manager to further embed the risk management 

framework.Deep dive risk reviews across certain service areas have also commenced to reflect changes to teams and ownership of risks 

following recent Service Reviews and to ensure risks are relevant and current, are updated with realistic target scores, and have internal 

controls and mitigating actions. P
age 89



6 
 

3.3 Work has also begun with services to gain greater visibility of how programme and project risks are being captured and escalated across 

the directorates. There will be greater focus on ensuring that programme and project leads have received their risk management training 

and are aware of how to capture and monitor their identified risks. 

3.4 Following feedback from the recent Medium Term Financial Planning (MTFP) and Budget Scrutiny processes, we currently reviewing the 

key financial risk process across the organisation, including the reporting to directorate and the Corporate Management Team budget 

boards. An update on this will be provided to the Risk Management Group meeting on 6 March 2023. 

3.5 The last meeting of the Risk Management Group was held on 16 December 2022, an update on this meeting will be provided in a separate 

report. The Risk Management Group are also due to meet on 30 January 2023, and an update from this meeting will be provided to the 

Audit and Governance committee in March. 

  

P
age 90



7 
 

4. Business Continuity Management (BCM) 

4.2 The Business Continuity Management (BCM) function is now being delivered alongside the Risk Management function. Following the 

implementation of the new Business Assurance structure and recent recruitment, the new BCM Lead will be joining Business Assurance 

and supporting the Risk and Business Continuity Manager to implement the new Buckinghamshire Council Corporate Resilience 

Framework & Standards. This is a One Council approach that allows us to have a clear understanding of how the Council responds to an 

emergency or disruption, both within the organisation and externally. The Council Resilience Group, who provide governance over the 

Corporate Resilience Framework and Standards, first met in September 2022 and is due to meet again next month. The team have  also 

established a good partnering relationship with the Resilience Team and will continue this link going forward and work has commenced 

with the services to review and refresh their business continuity plans. 

4.3 As part of the Buckinghamshire Council Corporate Resilience Framework & Standards and the Council Resilience Group, the 

Organisational Resilience Delivery Group (ORDG) met in January. The purpose of the ORDG is to deliver holistic assurance over 

organisational resilience of the Council’s policies, procedures, people, infrastructure and will focus on particular risk areas. The first focus 

area that we will be covering as part of ORDG will be Cyber Resilience – how the Council will prepare, respond and recover. 

4.4 The Winter Framework and Cell which is operational until the end of March 2023, also provides reassurance and coordination in the 

event that we need additional support for service winter plans should we have significant incidents over winter. The Winter Cell meets 

monthly to get a status report on where services are with their winter preparations and preparedness. 

4.5 In November 2022, we held Exercise Faraday, an exercise to test and exercise our preparedness against planned or unplanned power 

outages as we suspect we have some of these events over the winter period given Central Government planning assumptions. The 

P
age 91



8 
 

exercise consisted of a scenario that builds over two days with a final workshop to review lessons identified. We had approximately 30 

responses across the organisation to the exercise and a well participated workshop. 

5. Internal Audit 

5.1 The Internal Audit Function, supported by Mazars (through the APEX London Audit Framework) has been progressing with the delivery 

of the approved 2022/23 audit engagements. Since the last Audit and Governance Committee meeting in November, the team have 

finalised three audit report reports, nine grant certifications, six audits are at draft report stage and 11 engagements are at the fieldwork 

stage. 

5.2 From the approved plan, there are seven audits that we have recommended for deferment (see yellow highlight in Appendix 1 for changes 

to the Internal Audit Plan); 

i. Teachers’ Pensions Audit: Teachers Pensions are in the process of moving all employers over to the new reporting system.  This 

incorporates three existing processes into one which will eventually make submissions more accurate and help reduce the risk of 

incorrect variances between service and contribution data. The deadline for this should have been April 2022, but as Local 

Authorities went into discussions with their payroll providers it became more apparent that the complexities of the new Guidance 

were proving difficult to put into practice, due to this Teachers Pensions removed the deadline and is liaising with each authority 

to help resolve the issues. Buckinghamshire Council were not prepared to “go live” with the new system until our provider SAP 

(financial system) could guarantee a report which worked with little manual intervention.  This is on-going and the plan is to move 

P
age 92



9 
 

across to the new reporting system from January 2023. For these reasons we propose that the audit be undertaken as part of the 

FY2023/24 audit plan  

ii. Continuing Health Care (CHC): The Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care System (BOB ICS) are 

reviewing the CHC function across the whole BOB. This will inform how CHC commissioning will be undertaken in future. We 

recommend that the audit be deferred for this year while wait to see what BOB review outcomes which may mean CHC remains 

with the Council or moves up to BOB level. 

iii. K2 Systems Audit: The AURA programme which is focussed on the Council’s financial/HR system improvements is including a 

review of the K2 system and how the financial data and related controls will operate going forward. We recommend that this 

deferred to FY23/24 based on the progress of the programme to avoid duplication. 

iv. Shop4Support: The AURA programme which is focussed on the Council’s financial/HR system improvements is including a review 

of the Shop4Support system, and a detailed review is currently being undertaken by the Traded Services Task and Finish Group. 

We recommend that this be deferred to FY23/24 based on the progress of the AURA programme to avoid duplication. 

v. IT/ Infrastructure Resilience, Disaster Recovery and Backups, Change/ Patch Management (3 IT audits): These audits were 

identified as part of the IT Audit Need Assessment and the audit timing was based on the expected progress of the ONE 

Programme. IT Services are going through a significant transitional change as efforts are currently focussed on replacing the 

inherited legacy IT networks, that comprise of differing network providers and technologies e.g. different solution that enable 

staff to work remotely. Additionally, in a joint procurement with Bucks Health Trust (BHT), BT have been selected as our network 

partner. This joint Council/BHT network will provide the critical IT backbone on which our respective organisation will run their IT 

P
age 93



10 
 

systems. It will also enable a collaborative approach to joint working e.g. Council and BHT staff accessing each other’s systems. 

This new network will be managed by the Council’s IT Team replacing the legacy expensive and non-responsive outsourcing 

arrangements. In managing the network in-house the Council has made substantial financial savings . It should be noted that 

implementing such a large change project during the Covid crisis has proved to be a major challenge. The scale of this project is 

substantial as the new network covers 197 Council offices, schools, and roadside traffic management equipment locations, as 

well as 19 Fire Stations and 24 BHT premises (including all Buckinghamshire hospitals). It is connected to two externally hosted 

and jointly funded data centres, that are replacing a total of nine legacy server rooms across the partners. With the BT contract 

signed in December 2020 this project was directly impacted by the Covid crisis. Furthermore, the worldwide transistor chip 

shortage caused a major delay in the delivery of new hardware and that continues to this day. Chinese factories in lockdown and 

issues relating to exporting out of Hong Kong have all impacted the progress of this project. Despite these challenges the IT Service 

had continued to make good progress. In October the legacy network contract with Updata (Capita) was terminated and all legacy 

Walton Street services were migrated onto the new network. In December the legacy Wycombe contract was terminated and all 

services were migrated to the new network. The final legacy IT network at Amersham has been further delayed due to the 

transistor chip shortage. A delivery date from Cisco is still not confirmed but our expectation is that this work will be completed 

in early 2023. Once all legacy networks have been migrated we will update and replace the various office Wi-Fi solutions and 

migrate all IT users onto a new remote access Virtual Private Network (VPN) solution. The aim is for all this work to be completed 

by the Spring. It’s only then that any audit will provide maximum value and, critically, it’s only then that the service will have the 

IT resources available to support an audit programme. 

Whilst we recommend that the audit activity be deferred to 2023/24 plan, we recognise that the IT Service are not being 

complacent about the security of the current IT environments which remain a mix of old and new. Through Managed Security 

P
age 94



11 
 

Service (MSS) there is a 24/7 cyber monitoring environment in place with a proven triage process to investigate and respond to 

cyber alerts. The cyber partner who manages the MSS also scans the dark web for any Council data. The National Cyber Security 

Centre (NCSC) scans our IT environments for any vulnerability. Additionally before Christmas the networks were subject to an 

external penetration test to identify any weaknesses (funded and managed externally by DLUHC). Internally the IT team run a 

number of scans and checks to ensure the security of the IT environments. With staff and Councillors being the biggest security 

threat the team will continue to raise cyber awareness through monthly Boxphish training courses which supplemented by 

proactive Phishing email exercises. Additionally since November 2022 IT Services started piloting a new cyber capability that 

monitors the very depth of our operational environment checking or any IT account seeking to exploit its access or gain enhanced 

IT access. Lastly, we continue to run the NCSC’s Exercise in a Box workshops to check and validate our approach to National Cyber 

Security Centre (NCSC) operational scenarios.  

5.3 Using the audit tool, ‘Pentana’, Internal Audit have been monitoring implementation of audit actions. Follow-up of management actions 

is a continuous task that is undertaken by the auditors alongside their assigned audit engagements. The chart below provides a summary 

on the implementation status of the audit actions: 

  

P
age 95



12 
 

Summary Status of Management Actions 

 

 

5.4  Progress against implementing audit actions is reported to each of the Directorate leadership team meetings on a regular basis, and 

outstanding audit actions were reported to the Corporate Management Team (CMT) on 19 January 2023. There are only nine out of 373 

(2%) audit management actions which are overdue for implementation (see chart below showing status of all actions). Of the nine actions: 

• three are held within the Adults and Health Directorate – actions are all well progressed, expected to be closed off in January 

• one action is owned by Children’s Services – with the SEND Team now fully staffed as of end of December, the action will be 

addressed by end of January. 

• five actions are held within Resources – substantial progress has been made against all actions, and we are assured that these 

will be completed by end of January. 

Overdue
9

2% In Progress
69

19%

Complete
295
79%

P
age 96



13 
 

5.5 The Audit Board, chaired by the Service Director of Finance (S151), reviews progress against the Business Assurance Strategy, in particular 

delivery of the Internal Audit Plan..  Appendix 1 shows the current progress updated against the Internal Audit Plan.  

6. Business Assurance 

6.1 The Business Assurance Team continues to progress with the COVID grant assurance as the requirements from central government for 

returns, reconciliations and pre/post assurance checks continue. The team liaise with the services and support in the collation of the 

required returns, reconciliations and certification where required. Since the last committee update, the team have finalised three 

assurance engagements and these are summarised below: 

6.2 Better Buckinghamshire Programme Assurance: Following unitarisation in April 2020, the Better Buckinghamshire Programme was 

created to drive cost and operating model efficiencies, whilst embracing new ways of working; this was driven via individual Service 

reviews and staff consultations, with continuous improvement plans developed following the completion of these consultations. This 

review was carried out to establish the current progress being made within the programme and to provide assurance over the key 

organisational design principles of the programme with focus on Legal Services, Customer Service Centre, Highways & Technical Services 

and Economic Growth & Regeneration Services. From the deep dives, key themes were identified and recommendations were raised 

around; the Business Cases, Planning, Change Management, Risk Management and Efficiency Realisation including Monitoring and 

Report. The findings from this review were reported to CMT and the Service Improvement Team are taking the actions forward. 

6.3 New Highways Contract Assurance: To support the strategic transition from a single major highways contractor to multiple service 

providers, the Business Assurance Team will perform a three-phased advisory review of the programme ahead of the April 1st 2023 go-

live date.  

P
age 97



14 
 

The objective of Phase 1 is to provide assurance across multiple pillars in the transition, identifying practical recommendations which can 

feed into the next phases of the review. The scope of work: 

• Review of detailed documentation such as transition plans, governance arrangements, contracts, and monitoring arrangements 

during the decommissioning stage. 

• Review of the project documentation in respect of risk and change management.  

• Conduct interviews with key stakeholders involved in the transition to gain a deeper understanding of governance, current 

processes, change management, improvement opportunities, risks and challenges, and interdependencies. 

It was agreed with management that our focus would be on: 

• Identification of gaps in the current process with our recommended solutions. 

• Identification of risks to effective change management/ transformation in order to achieve the vision.  

• Comparison of the council’s approach to best practice principles and provision of insights from other councils. 

The review identified some areas of good practice, however across six key themes 18 recommendations were raised and the service are 

taking these forward as they progress with the programme. 

  

P
age 98



15 
 

7. Counter Fraud 
7.1 The Business Assurance Team procedures alone cannot guarantee the detection of fraud and corruption, nor can we give an overall 

assurance opinion on counter fraud, therefore management have responsibility for ensuring that there are adequate controls in place to 

manage the risk of fraud and corruption. The size and complexity of the authority means that some irregularities are inevitable, and when 

these arise the Fraud Team deploy resources to investigate these. Whilst responding to fraud allegations raised internally and externally, 

the team also had a proactive schedule of activity the includes Fraud Awareness Training and probity reviews. The tables below provides 

a summary of the fraud cases that the team have been managing this year: 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Schools Fraud Housing Fraud Grants Fraud Blue Badge
Fraud

CTax Fraud SPD Fraud Benefits Fraud Corporate
Fraud

Number of Open Cases by Fraud Type

December January

P
age 99



16 
 

 

 

Closed Cases by Fraud Type

CTAX (34)
SPD (42)
Housing (26)
Corporate (18)
Schools (8)
Direct Payments (3)
Insurance (1)
Blue Badge (6)
Benefits (7)
Grants (58)

P
age 100



17 
 

8. Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Activity 
 

Corporate  

Service Audit Title/ Activity  Objectives/Risk/Concerns  Status Update   

Cross-cutting Assurance Framework Develop a means of identify  and mapping the main source of assurance across  the Council and 
coordinating them to best effect.   

On-going   

Covid-19 Pre and Post Payment 
Assurance Plan 

Undertake require assurance reviews and returns in line with government requirements.  On-going   

Grants Undertake grant certification in line with grant conditions  
  

On-going   

Deputy Chief Executive  

Service Audit Title/ Activity  Objectives/Risk/Concerns  RAG Per 
Model  

Status Update   

Policy & Communications 

GDPR Deferred from 21/22 plan. To ensure that the Council is compliant with GDPR requirements. To 
ensure that there is adequate process for the identification, review and reporting of a personal 
data breach.   

HIGH  Draft Report 
 

Policy & Communications 

Complaints Deferred from 21/22 plan. To ensure that there are robust and effective systems are in place 
for the complete, accurate and timely recording, processing, and acknowledging of complaints. 
Including effective monitoring framework, which delivers accurate, timely and relevant 
information for management review.  

HIGH  Completed 
 

Legal & Dem Services 

Legal Processes Deferred from 21/22 plan. To ensure that there are adequate arrangements in place for the 
services to engage with the legal team, cases are recorded, monitored and costs tracked 
appropriately.   

LOW  Not started   
 

Policy & Communications 

Community Boards Deferred from 21/22 plan. To evaluate the governance arrangements, risk management and 
financial management is adequate, transparent and board objectives are monitored and 
reported on.  

HIGH  Fieldwork in-
progress  

Policy & Communications 

Devolution Deferred from 21/22 plan. To evaluate the processes and procedures in place to ensure an 
effective transfer of services and assets to town and parish councils in line with the approved 
policy.  

LOW  Not started   
 

P
age 101



18 
 

Service Improvement 
Corporate Performance 

Framework 
To assess the adequacy of the Council’s performance and reporting arrangements.  MEDIUM Fieldwork in-

progress 
 

Service Improvement 
Helping Hand Programme 

Assurance 
Evaluate the delivery of the programme and ensure that objectives are met, risks are 
adequately managed and value for money is evident.  

MEDIUM  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Service Improvement 
Better Buckinghamshire 
Programme Assurance 

Ensure that the programme is effectively managed to deliver set objective in a timely  manner 
and within budget.  

MEDIUM  Completed  

Adults & Health  

Service Audit Title/ Activity Objectives/Risk/Concerns  RAG Per 
Model  

Status Update   

Integrated Commissioning Direct Payments Audit deferred from 20/21 & 21/22 audit plan End to end process reviewing adequacy and 
effectiveness of controls in place.  

HIGH  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Adult Social Care Continuing Health Care: End to end process review evaluating arrangements in place with the CCG (includes client 
assessment/ eligibility and financial management).  

HIGH  Defer to 2023/24   

Adult Social Care Seeleys Establishment Audit Review of compliance with practice and set process and manuals. Work to be undertaken 
ahead of next CQC inspection to demonstrate progress against the improvement plan  

MEDIUM  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Integrated Commissioning Disability Facilities Grant Grant verification in line with the terms and conditions.  N/A  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Integrated Commissioning Commissioning and Financial 
Management of Spot Contracts 

End to end process reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place.  HIGH  Audit scoping in-
progress   

 

Integrated Commissioning E-brokerage End to end process reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place.  MEDIUM  Audit scoping in-
progress   

 

Public Health Joint Strategic Assessment. Focus of review to be agreed with the service   TBC  Not started    

Finance A&H Debt Recovery (Unsecured 
Debt) 

As debt recovery was paused during the pandemic and the debt recovery process has been 
moved to Finance Operations team, the audit will be reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of 
controls  

MEDIUM  Audit scoping in-
progress    

Children’s Services  
Service Audit Title/ Activity Objectives/Risk/Concerns  RAG Per 

Model  
Status Update   

Education Schools Thematic Review  Review of key controls for sample of schools selected per the risk assessment.  HIGH  Three Schools 
Completed 

 

Social Care Direct Payments (including 
clawbacks) 

End to end process reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place  HIGH  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

P
age 102



19 
 

Social Care Placement and Panel Decisions There is an increase in spend within placements and assurance is required that controls are 
adequate. Requested by the Corporate Director. 

HIGH Not started  

Education SEND Ofsted Improvement Plan 
Assurance 

Evaluate the completeness adequacy of the improvement plan against the findings raised in 
the Ofsted report.  

MEDIUM  Not started    

Social Care Social Care Ofsted 
Improvement Plan Assurance 

Evaluate the completeness adequacy of the improvement plan against the findings raised in 
the Ofsted report.  

MEDIUM  Completed  

Education SEND Process review – Focused 
on ECCOH 

End to end review of processes and evaluation of controls to identify inefficiencies in process 
and improvements to data quality.  

HIGH  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Social Care Section 17 Payments End to end process reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place.  MEDIUM  Draft Report  

Social Care Supported Families Programme Grant Verification  N/A  On-going    

Education  Related Party Transaction 
Assurance (SFVS) 

verification work in line with DfE guidance  N/A  Not started    

Communities 

Service Audit Title/ Activity Objectives/Risk/Concerns  RAG Per 
Model  

Status Update   

Highways & Technical 
Services 

Parking On/Off Street End to end review of processes and evaluation of controls on the new system.  HIGH  Draft Report  

Transport Services Home to School Transport End to end review of processes and evaluation of controls on the new system.  HIGH  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Neighbourhood Services Household Recycling Centres New contract in place, review of processes at the HRC; and contract management with new 
contractor.  

MEDIUM  Not started    

Neighbourhood Services Business Licenses and Permits – 
Process review 

End to end review of processes and evaluation of controls on the new system.  LOW  Not started    

Neighbourhood Services Waste Management End to end review of processes and evaluation of controls on the new system.  HIGH  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Culture, Sports & Leisure Higginson Park Financial Controls Audit  LOW  Audit scoping in-
progress   

 

Culture, Sports & Leisure Farnham Park Financial Controls Audit  LOW  Audit scoping in-
progress   

 

Highways & Technical 
Services 

New Highways Contract 
Assurance 

Provide assurance on the processes being proposed for the new contract arrangement  HIGH  Phase 1 - Complete    

P
age 103



20 
 

Planning, Growth & Sustainability  

Service Audit Title/ Activity Objectives/Risk/Concerns RAG Per 
Model 

Status Update  

Housing & Regulatory 
Services 

Enforcement (Housing) 
Audit deferred from 21/22 audit plan. End to end process reviewing adequacy and 
effectiveness of controls in place.  

MEDIUM  Not started    

Housing & Regulatory 
Services 

Homelessness and Temporary 
Accommodation 

Audit deferred from 20/21 & 21/22 audit plan, merged with Temporary Accommodation 
audit. This area has not been looked at before and it’s a high-profile area in terms of the 
significant financial spend and reputational risk resulting from housing people in temporary 
and emergency accommodation for lengthy periods  

HIGH  Draft Report 
 

Planning & Environment Building Control Audit deferred from 20/21 & 21/22 audit plan End to end process reviewing including finance, 
regulatory compliance and performance.  

MEDIUM  Not started    

Property & Assets Property Maintenance Audit deferred from 20/21 & 21/22 audit plan End to end process reviewing adequacy and 
effectiveness of controls in place.  

HIGH  Not started    

Property & Assets Property – Reactive Works Audit deferred from 20/21 & 21/22 audit plan End to end process reviewing adequacy and 
effectiveness of controls in place.  

HIGH  Not started    

Housing & Regulatory 
Services 

Disability Facilities Grant (Use 
of the funding) 

Audit deferred from 20/21 & 21/22 audit plan. Review the process for commissioning housing 
adaptions and the use of the DFG fund. To include review of contractors used, VfM.  

MEDIUM  Not started    

LEP LEP & BBF Assurance Evaluation of key financial controls  MEDIUM  Not started    

Strategic Transport & 
Infrastructure 

Project Assurance Strategic Transport & Infrastructure review of project management controls include reporting 
and escalation arrangements in place within the service.  

HIGH  Completed  

Finance K2 Systems Audit Large volume and value of transactions processed; therefore an evaluation of key controls 
will be undertaken.  

HIGH  Defer to 2023/24   

Resources  

Service Audit Title/ Activity Objectives/Risk/Concerns RAG Per 
Model 

Status Update  

Business Operations Blue Badges, Administration 
and Enforcement 

To ensure that badges are only issued to residents who satisfy one or more of the eligibility 
criteria (as updated by the Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2019 (S.I. 2019 No. 891) on 30 August 2019 to include ‘hidden’ 
disabilities) set out in the legislation that governs the scheme.  

LOW  Audit scoping in-
progress    

P
age 104



21 
 

Business Operations Business Support – Accounts 
Payable and Accounts 

Receivables 

Review of financial controls and compliance to corporate procedures.  HIGH  Audit scoping in-
progress    

Business Operations Shop4Support End to end sales process review  MEDIUM  Defer to 2023/24   

HR & OD Teachers Pensions – new 
system in place 

New system in place, review process and controls in place  MEDIUM  Defer to 2023/24   

HR & OD Payroll Follow-up Ensure that the actions from the 2021/22 audit have been fully implemented.  MEDIUM  Not started   

HR & OD Learning and Development To review organisational spend on learning and development to ensure consistency and quality 
of training.  

HIGH  Not started   

Finance Capital Programme To ensure business cases are adequate, approved and projects on the programme are 
sufficiently monitored.   

HIGH  Fieldwork in-
progress 

 

Finance Procurement Compliance Ensure that procurement rules are clearly documented and followed in all procurement 
exercises.  

MEDIUM  Audit scoping in-
progress   

 

Finance Year End Assurance - Journals 
and Accruals 

Compliance with financial controls  LOW  Not started   

Finance Pensions Evaluation of key controls  LOW  Not started   

Finance Completeness and Effectiveness 
of the Finance Assurance Pack 

Evaluation of the adequacy of controls monitoring and assessment on the effectiveness of the 
assurance pack.  

MEDIUM  Audit scoping in-
progress   

 

Finance Scheme of Delegation – 
Financial and Non-Financial 

delegations 

Evaluation of the Scheme of Delegation to ensure that these are understood by all and 
complied with when making decisions.  

MEDIUM  Audit scoping in-
progress    

Finance Council Tax Evaluation of key financial controls  HIGH  Draft Report    

Finance National Non-domestic Rates Evaluation of key financial controls  HIGH  Draft Report    

Finance Council Tax Reduction Scheme/ 
Housing Benefits 

Evaluation of key financial controls  HIGH  Draft Report    

Finance Key Financial Systems Evaluation of key financial controls  MEDIUM  Not started   

IT IT/Infrastructure Resilience – 
Per Audit Needs Assessment 

A number of IT/Infrastructure resilience-related risks feature in the Council’s IT Risk Register. 
The audit will address; consideration of the impact of the pandemic on IT/infrastructure 
resilience, People, process and technology perspective, including a high-level review of the IT 
architecture and technology in place.  

HIGH  Defer to 2023/24  
 

IT Disaster Recovery and Backups 
– Per Audit Needs Assessment 

Disaster recovery was noted as having a residual risk score of 10 in the Council’s IT risk register 
with a fully tested strategy and plan required to provide the Council assurance that full business 
continuity can be provided. This audit would test controls in regard to backup scope, frequency, 
offsite location, testing and recovery.  

HIGH  Defer to 2023/24  
 

P
age 105



22 
 

IT Change/Patch Management This audit will consider the following:  
- Change to infrastructure and applications are governed through a consistent policy/process;  
- The change process addresses the request, impact, authorisation, testing, deployment of 
changes;  
- Comparison with LG peers concerning good change control practice commonly identified;  
- Patch management is undertaken across the estate in a complete, accurate and timely 
manner.  

HIGH  Defer to 2023/24  

 

Counter Fraud Plan  
Proactive/ Probity 
Activity  
  

NFI data matches  Support services with collating the NFI data and determining an approach for prioritising the instances that require 
investigation.  

 

Blue badge abuse  Investigate blue badges that have been in place for long periods and ensure that these are valid.   
Covid grant recovery  Undertaking post payment assurance and identify and investigate instances of possible false claims   
Schools  Lessons learnt from 21/22 investigations to be shared with all schools and presented via schools forum.   
Fraud awareness training  Hold formal sessions to groups across the Council to raise awareness of what the Business Assurance Team’s responsibilities 

are  in relation to fraud and counter-fraud, different types of fraud, fraud risks, whistleblowing procedures etc.  
 

Internal Communication on 
Fraud  

Send messages across the Council to promote 'good practice' and raise awareness of potential indicators of fraud and staff 
responsibilities.  

 

Policy Reviews  Review and refresh the key fraud policies, including; Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy.   

Reactive Activity  Assess cases referred via whistleblowing channels and investigate where necessary.  

Continuous Improvement  Embed the case management system  
Fraud networking and chairing of key networks  

External Clients  No. of Days  

BMKFA  Audit plan approved and date for audit delivery agreed with the clients. Plan to be delivered by February 2022 ahead of their external 
audit.  

110  

Academies  Audit plans approved and key days for audit delivery agreed with the Academies  30  

 

P
age 106



 

Page 1 of 9 

 

Report to Audit & Governance  
Date:    1st February 2023 

Title:    Contract Procedure Rules – Waivers & Breaches 

Author:    Simon Davis, Head of Strategic Procurement 

Recommendations:   

i. Note this report and the work of the Strategic Procurement Team. 

 

1. Summary 

1.1 This report provides a six monthly summary in relation to compliance with the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules (CPR’s), compliance with the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 as well as summarising waivers and breaches.  It also provides a 
quick summary of the current procurement culture in the Council. 

➢ Pages 1-8 Main report 

➢ Appendix 1page 9 - Waivers over the last 12 months 

➢ Appendix 2 – Note on Procurement Action on Past Breaches (Confidential session) 

➢ Confidential Appendix 3 – Breach report 

2. Background 

2.1 The Committee have received previous reports on this subject, the last presented on 
28th July 2022 which covered the last 6 months of the financial year 21/22. This 
report is a six-month update and covers the first 6 months of financial year 22/23. 
The Council is subject to Procurement Legislation when entering into contracts with 
suppliers. These laws must be followed regardless of the types of goods, services or 
works. 

The reporting period covers the following period: 

1st April 2022 until 30th September 2022 

Page 107

Agenda Item 9



Page 2 of 9 

 

The CPRs state that Corporate Directors are responsible for procurement exercises and 
contract management activities. This responsibility is then delegated to Service Directors 
& Heads of Service.  

3. Contract Procedure Rules relating to Contracts, Waivers and Breaches 

The Procurement & SRM Team provide service areas with a monthly report of all contracts 
on CMA.  In addition to this, a quarterly update report of all contracts over £50k due to 
expire within the next 18 months is sent to Contract Managers which the team pro-
actively follow up to ensure appropriate action is being taken. In addition, when a waiver 
is requested, service areas are required to complete mandatory actions to reduce both 
the risk of future waivers and breaches. Compliance checking is undertaken to ensure 
these actions are followed up and that those members of staff involved in purchasing 
activity are both adequately trained and ensuring contracts are up to date. 

 

3.1 Rules 6.31 to 6.37 state that all purchases over £25K (inc. VAT) must be subject to 
competition. Where the estimated whole life cost of a contract is: 

 

Up to and including £25,000 for Goods, 
Services and Works: 

A minimum of 1 written quotation is required. 
This can be a written confirmation by an officer 
of an oral quotation. 
Where possible local suppliers should be 
given the   opportunity to bid. 

Over £25,000 and up to  the Procurement 
Threshold  for Goods & Services 
(including the Light Touch Regime): 

A minimum of 3 written quotations requested. 
 

Where possible local suppliers should be 
given the opportunity to bid. 

Over £25,000 and up to the Procurement 
Threshold for Works: 

A minimum of 4 written tenders requested. 
Where possible local suppliers should be 
given the opportunity to bid. 

Relevant Procurement Threshold and over: Full Tender Process or compliant 
Framework   Agreement. 

Table1: Internal Thresholds – All thresholds now include VAT 
 
3.2 Rule 6.18 allows a Waiver to the requirement for competition and allows a contract to be 

placed by direct negotiation with one supplier. This needs to be agreed and documented 
in advance. Waivers under this Rule, however, cannot be granted if over the relevant 
legal procurement thresholds.  

 

£213,477 The goods and services threshold. 
 

£5,336,937 The works threshold. 
 

£663,540 
  The Light Touch Regime (LTR) threshold 
(This is a procurement regime for social and other specific services such as 
social care; education services; healthcare). 

Table 2: Relevant Legal Procurement Thresholds effective Jan 2022 (including VAT) 

Page 108

https://internal.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/procurement-thresholds-2022/
https://internal.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/procurement-thresholds-2022/
https://www.ojec.com/Thresholds.aspx
https://internal.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/procurement-thresholds-2022/
https://internal.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/procurement-thresholds-2022/
https://internal.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/procurement-thresholds-2022/


Page 3 of 9 

 

3.3 If a direct award is made which is above the relevant procurement threshold (if a legal 
alternative such as a Framework is not used) or a contract has rolled on after its end date 
then a breach has occurred, and officers are obliged to report this to the S151 Officer and 
Monitoring Officer (statutory officers). In some instances, there may be legal permitted 
changes within the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 

4. Waivers  

4.1 Service areas can complete waiver forms to waive internal rules, but not contracts 
that are subject to the Procurement Regulations such as contracts over the legal 
procurement threshold, unless legal advice states otherwise. Service areas must 
demonstrate in advance why a waiver is needed and must include evidence to prove 
this is best value. The Procurement team carries out commercial assessments on all 
waivers using a risk-based approach. Legal and financial input is requested when 
appropriate. 

 
4.2 Waivers are signed off by sign off by: 

 

1. S151 Officer (delegated to the Head of Strategic Procurement); 
2. Relevant Corporate Director;  
3. Relevant Cabinet Member. 

 
4.3 The main factors considered in how the risk rating is arrived at include: 
 

• The value of the contract and previous spend on the contract. 
• Reasons for the Waiver. 
• Any risks associated with the supplier. 
• Whether the marketplace is prone to challenge. 
• The requirement is a one-time requirement. 
• There is an on-going requirement, but a compliant procurement process is 

underway or substantially planned. 
• Possible reputational damage. 

 

4.4 Waiver summary April 2022 – September 2022 
 
Summary of all Waivers registered during Q1 – Q2 2022/23  

Summary FY 2021/22 Qtr.1 Qtr. 2 Total 

Total number of Waivers registered 15 13 28 

Lowest value Waiver £15,058 £15,000  

Highest value Waiver £828,002 £2,173,500  

Total number of Waivers raised retrospectively  8 6 14 

Page 109



Page 4 of 9 

 

Total value of retrospective waivers  £1,031,950 £1,411,818 £2,443,767 

Total value of all waivers processed £2,221,489.42 £4,998,297  £7,219,786 

Table 2: Summary of all Waivers registered during Q1 – 2 2022/23  

 

There were a total number of 28 Waivers registered in this 6-month period.  

➢ Quarter 1  
 

• There were 15 completed Waivers. 
• The total value of Waivers approved during this period was £2,221,489.42 
• The highest value Waiver was for £828,002. This was for Revenues and Benefits 

remote processing support – Backlog. Legal advice was sought and agreed under 
Regulation 32(2)(b)  

• The lowest value Waiver was for £15,058. 
 

➢ Quarter 2 
• There were 13 completed Waivers. 
• The total value of Waivers approved during this period was £4,998,297.85. 
• The highest value Waiver was for £2,173,500 for the E-Scooter Agreement. Legal 

advice was sought & agreed. The value of the waiver and the overall value of the 
existing contract and the extension of the trial is below the Concessions Contract 
Regulations threshold of £5,336,937 including VAT. 

• The lowest value Waiver was for £15,000. 
                                                                                                                                         

It should be noted, that waivers are not negative. They are a tool for the Council to get a quick 
solution at best value and are subject to a high level of assurance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



Page 5 of 9 

 

5. Waiver Data tables 

 

  QUARTER 1 - 22/23 

  
NO. 

REGISTERED WAIVER VALUE 
WAIVER RISK 

RATING 

ADULTS & HEALTH      

Community Safety Service   2 £212,000.00 Low 
Public Health 2 £115,058.00 Low 

ADULTS & HEALTH Total 4 £327,058.00  
  

  
 CHILDRENS SERVICES    

Integrated Commissioning 1 £43,383.96 Low 
School Improvement 1 £27,000.00 Low 

CHILDRENS SERVICES Total 2 £70,383.96  
  

  
 COMMUNITIES    

Cemeteries & Crematoria 1 £120,000.00 Low 
COMMUNITIES Total 1 £120,000.00  
  

  
 PLANNING, GROWTH & SUSTAINABILITY    

Climate Response & Grants & Adaptations 1 £177,898.00 Low 
Housing 1 £40,197.78 Low 
Property & Assets 1 £44,000.00 Low 
Property FM 1 £51,400.00 Low 

PLANNING, GROWTH & SUSTAINABILITY Total 4 £313,495.78  

  
  

 RESOURCES    
Business Operations 1 £92,320.00 Low 
Corporate Business Support 1 £430,229.68 Medium 
Revenues & Benefits 1 £828,002.00 Low 
Service Finance 1 £40,000.00 Low 

RESOURCES Total 4 £1,390,551.68  
    Low Risk 14  
GRAND TOTAL 
 

15 £2,221,489.42 
Medium Risk 1 

Table 3: Summary of Waivers for Q1 22/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111



Page 6 of 9 

 

  QUARTER 2 - 22/23 

  
NO. 

REGISTERED WAIVER VALUE 
WAIVER RISK 

RATING 

ADULTS & HEALTH      

Housing and Equipment 1 £855,755.00 Low 
Prevention in the Community Team 1 £380,225.25 Low 

ADULTS & HEALTH Total 2 £1,235,980.25  
  

  
 CHILDRENS SERVICES    

Adult Learning 1 £30,000.00 Low 
Personalisation Team - Integrated Commissioning 1 £25,000.00 Low 
Education 1 £1,169,318.00 Medium 

CHILDRENS SERVICES Total 3 £1,224,318.00  
  

  
 COMMUNITIES    

Parking Services 1 £140,000.00 Low 
Neighbourhood Services 1 £77,000.00   Low 

COMMUNITIES Total 2 £217,000.00  
  

  
 PLANNING, GROWTH & SUSTAINABILITY    

Property & Assets 1 £65,000.00 Low 
Planning Improvement Board/Planning Policy 2 £47,499.60 Both Low 
Strategic Transport & Infrastructure 1 £2,173,500.00 Low 
Town Centre Regeneration / Economic Development Team 1 £20,000.00 Low 

PLANNING, GROWTH & SUSTAINABILITY Total 5 £2,305,999.60  

  
  

 RESOURCES    
Business Rates 1   £15,000.00 Medium 

RESOURCES Total 1 £15,000.00  
    Low Risk 11  
GRAND TOTAL 
 

13 £4,998,297.85 
Medium Risk 2 

          Table 4: Summary of Waivers for Q2 22/23 
 

5.1 Tables 3 and 4 above shows the number of contract waivers granted in the last two 
quarters to September 22.  Appendix 1 lays out the number of waivers and contract 
values over the last four quarters to analyse any trends over the last year.  Barring an 
increase in Quarter 4 21/22 which was because of increased waivers in Planning, 
Growth and Sustainability there is a steady level of waivers being granted.  The 
Procurement Team will be engaging more with Directorates in 2023, mainly through 
their Budget Boards with a more granular level of data including the forward-looking 
procurement pipeline timelines, so that we can have encourage better planning and 
procurement preparation and see a reduction in the number of waivers coming 
through. 

 
  

Page 112



Page 7 of 9 

 

6. Breaches to Public Contracts Regulations 2015 

6.1 One breach has been reported to the Statutory Officers in the period since the last 
report. This is contained in confidential Appendix 3.  

 
6.2 At the Audit and Governance meeting in July a request was made for what action 

Procurement had taken on incidences of past breaches.  This is contained in 
confidential Appendix 2.  

 

7. Publication of Opportunities and Award Notices 

7.1 The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 require Local Authorities to publish contract 
opportunities and award notices on the Government website Contracts Finder where 
the value is above their own quotation threshold. Over the relevant legal procurement 
threshold these must be advertised on the ‘Find a Tender Service’. 

 
7.2 The Local Government Transparency Code 2015 requires all contracts with a value of 

£5K and higher to be published. The Council meets this requirement and uploads all 
contracts to its internal Contract Management Application (CMA) to ensure it has 
oversight and governance on all procured contracts. 

 

7.3 The Cabinet Office monitors potential breaches raised by suppliers via a Procurement 
Review Service (previously the Mystery Shopper Service). Procurement Review Service 
will contact public bodies to investigate any potential breach and ask for any evidence. 
The Procurement Review Service shall then make a ruling on the proposed course of 
action including any lessons for the future. The Council has not been subjected to any 
investigation by the Cabinet Office’ Procurement Review Service for this period. 

8. Procurement & Contract Management Training  

8.1 An additional 243 training sessions have been attended in Q1 and Q2 2022/23 bringing 
the cumulative total since 1st April 2020 to 1,318.  
 

Training Courses F/Y 20/21  F/Y 21/22   F/Y 22/23 (April – 
September) 

Understanding Procurement  182 176 65  

Understanding G-Cloud (launched April 2022) 0 0 23  

Pro-Contract e-Sourcing Tender portal  91 66 36  

Modern Slavery in the Supply Chain training  108 32 25  

Contract Management Development (CMD)  61 103 38  

Page 113



Page 8 of 9 

 

Contract Management Application (CMA)  119 72 44  

Best Practice Self-Assessment training  44 21 12  

Total 605 470 243  

Table 5: Summary of Procurement & SRM training to September 2022 

9. Procurement Legislation Changes 

9.1 In May 2022 the Procurement Bill was published in Parliament. A&G Committee 
received an update in July on the proposed Bill. There is no further update at present, 
however a plan has been drafted for the roll out of this new legislation.  The plan 
covers, training, internal communications, the need to change documents and 
changes to the CPRs. 

 

 

  

Page 114



      Appendix 1  

Page 9 of 9 

 

 
 

Table 6: Summary of all Waivers registered in the past 12 months 

 

 

 

 
 

 Quarter 3 FY 21/22 Quarter 4 FY 21/22 Quarter 1 FY 22/23 Quarter 2 FY 22/23 
Directorate No. of 

Waivers 
registered 

Total Value No. of 
Waivers 
registered 

Total Value No. of 
Waivers 
registered 

Total Value No. of 
Waivers 
registered 

Total Value 

ADULTS & HEALTH  0 £0.00 2 £98,317.00 4 £327,058.00 2 £1,235,980.25 
CHILDRENS SERVICES 2 £82,008.00 1 £305,000.00 1 £120,000.00 2 £217,000.00 
COMMUNITIES 2 £49,381.74 3 £223,745.00 2 £70,383.96 3 £1,224,318.00 
DEPUTY CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

1 £635,000.00 2 £69,831.00 0 £0.00 0 £0.00 

PLANNING, GROWTH & 
SUSTAINABILITY 

4 £13,773,221.58 9 £566,294.33 4 £313,495.78 5 £2,305,999.60 

RESOURCES 1 £35,136.85 3 £1,117,225.00 4 £1,390,551.68 1 £15,000.00 
TOTAL 10 £14,574,748.17 20 £2,380,412.33 15 £2,221,489.42 13 £4,998,297.85 

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Date Items 
28 July 22 1. Action log  

2. Appointments to the Risk Management Group Verbal Report 
3. 20/21 Accounts Verbal Update 
4. Treasury Management Annual Report 2021/2022  
5. Annual Governance Statement Verbal Update 
6. Internal Audit Charter 
7. Work programme  
8. 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy (including Internal Audit Plan)  
9. Business Assurance Strategy Update (Q1) 
10. Contract Procedure Rules - Waivers & Breaches (part confidential) 
11. 21/22 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and Audit Actions Summary Report (confidential) 

 
27 September 22 1. Action log  

2. Buckinghamshire Council Statement of Accounts 20/21 
3. Farnham Park Sports Fields Charity Annual Report and Financial Statements 21/22 
4. Higginson Park Trust Fund Accounts 21/22 
5. 21/22 Annual Report of the Chief Internal Auditor 
6. 22/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update 
7. Audit Committee – Review of Effectiveness 
8. Annual Governance Statement – Process 
9. Risk Management Group Update 
10. Work Programme 
11. 22/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and Audit Actions Summary Report (confidential) 
12. 21/22 Annual Report of the Chief Internal Auditor - Summary of Completed Audits and Audit Action Tracker 

(confidential) 
 

  

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 10



23 November 22 1. Buckinghamshire Council Statement of Accounts 20/21 and 21/22 Update 
2. External Audit Risk Assessment 
3. Buckinghamshire Council Pension Fund Accounts 21/22 Update 
4. Treasury Management Mid-Year update 
5. Treasury Management loans to other local authorities 
6. Annual Governance Statement 
7. Business Assurance team structure update 
8. Risk Management Group update  
9. 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update (incl. Internal Audit Plan)  
10. Work programme  
11. Action log  
12. 22/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and Audit Actions Summary Report (confidential) 

 
1 February 23 1. Buckinghamshire Council Statement of Accounts 20/21 and 21/22 Update 

2. Treasury Management Strategy 
3. External Auditors Annual Report 
4. Risk Management Group update 
5. 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update (incl. Internal Audit Plan)  
6. Contract Procedure Rules - Waivers & Breaches (part confidential) 
7. Work Programme 
8. Action Log 
9. 22/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and Audit Actions Summary Report (confidential) 

 
29 March 23 1. Buckinghamshire Council Statement of Accounts 20/21 and 21/22 Update 

2. Pension Fund Accounts 21/22 
3. Constitution Working Group Update 
4. Risk and Business Continuity Management Strategy 
5. Whistleblowing Policy 
6. Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
7. Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

P
age 118



8. 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update (incl. Internal Audit Plan)  
9. Risk Management Group update 
10. 2023/24 Draft Business Assurance Strategy (incl. Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plan) 
11. Work Programme 
12. Action Log 
13. 22/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and Audit Actions Summary Report (confidential) 
14. 22/23 Fraud Cases Update (confidential) 
 

 
10 May 23 1. Audit Committee – Review of Effectiveness  

2. Annual Business Continuity Management Update  
Other items TBC 

 

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Last updated: 19th January 2023

No. Action required Lead Date raised Due date Action taken

Date resolved 

(grey when 

resolved)

Status

1

Local Member Engagement

That an update be provided on assessing member 

engagement in Cabinet and Cabinet Member decisions. 

This piece of work may be undertaken by the newly in 

post Principal Governance Advisor. Consideration should 

also be given to sharing this report with the Finance and 

Resources Select Committee. 

Maggie Gibb / 

Governance 

Officer

25-Jan-22 30-Jun-22

Update Sept 22: Work to be progressed as part of Corporate Governance 

review being undertaken by Principal Governance Advisor.

Update Nov 22: Work to be achieved by end of March 2023; initial 

scoping taking place with Deputy Monitoring Officer and to be taken 

forward by Principal Governance Officer.

Ongoing

2

Draft Annual Governance Statement

To seek views from Committee Members on the 

contents of the Annual Governance Statement 2021/22

Glenn Watson 28-Jul-22 14-Oct-22

Update Sept 22: Committee member views sought 10/08/22. Two 

responses received from the Chairman & Vice Chairman. Comments 

included in the draft AGS 2021/22 for Committee on 27/09/22. 27/09/22: 

Deadline for comments extended to 14 October.

Update Nov 22: Following the September Committee meeting, members 

of the Committee were re-consulted on a revised draft AGS - on 18 and 

28 October. Comments were made by Cllr Clarke and Cllr Newcombe 

(deputy chair and chair).  Comments incorporated and final revised 

version agreed by Deputy Monitoring Officer and Monitoring Officer and 

indicative supporting comment from Cllr Newcombe.  To be considered 

again by Committee on 23/11. 

Update Jan 2023: Annual Governance Statement approved by Committee 

on 23 November 2022. Finance and External Auditor informed.  Leader 

and Chief Executive were provided with the final, approved version and 

agreed (December 2022) to add their signatures.  Committee noted that 

the process for the 22/23 AGS would begin earlier in 2023 to allow 

greater consultation with the Committee; and that it would be drafted in 

a more accessible, pictorial style akin to other council publications.

01-Feb-23 Closed

3

Farnham Park Sports Field Charity and Higginson Park 

Trust

To ensure that the 22/23 accounts, and subsequent 

years are signed by a separate officer to the S151 officer 

on behalf of the Council as Trustee

Dave Skinner 27-Sep-22 01-Apr-23

Update Nov 22: Alternative officer being considered

Update Jan 23: Proposal is that one of the Assistant Directors will sign off  

FPT and HPT accounts and they have sufficient seniority as Deputy S151’s. 

Will need to think about how this works with preparation and separation 

of duties but that will be the working premise.

Ongoing

Audit and Governance Committee action log

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 11



No. Action required Lead Date raised Due date Action taken

Date resolved 

(grey when 

resolved)

Status

4

2021/22 Statement of Accounts

To assess early indication of external audit work required 

on the accounts and whether an additional A&G meeting 

should be scheduled in December/January

Dave Skinner / 

Maggie Gibb
27-Sep-22 31-Oct-22

Update Nov 22: Verbal update to be provided as part of the update on 

accounts

Update Jan 23: Close Action as already covered. Will provide an update 

on Statement of Accounts at each meeting.

01-Feb-23 Closed

5

2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update 

To clarify whether there were any proceeds of crime 

orders or compensation ordered by the Court for the 

counter fraud offence sentence referred to in the 

November meeting papers

Maggie Gibb 23-Nov-22 01-Feb-23
Update Jan 23: Will provide update on recovery of fraud cases for 22/23 

at March A&G meeting
Ongoing

6

Work Programme - Constitution update

To consult with the Service Director for Legal and 

Deomcratic Services as to when most appropriate to 

bring a future Constitution update to the Committee

Maggie Gibb 23-Nov-22 01-Feb-23 Update Jan 23: Added to work programme for March. 01-Feb-23 Closed

P
age 122



Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 127

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 137

Appendix 
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 141

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 183

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Audit and Governance Committee agenda
	Membership:
	Webcasting notice


	3 Minutes
	5 External Auditor's Annual Report
	Executive summary
	Background
	Other options considered
	Legal and financial implications
	Corporate implications
	Consultation and communication
	Next steps and review
	Background papers

	5 External Auditor's Annual Report
	Item 5_Interim Buckinghamshire Council AAR 202021
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Executive summary
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Key recommendations
	Slide 6: Commentary on the Authority's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
	Slide 7:  Financial sustainability
	Slide 8
	Slide 9:  Financial sustainability
	Slide 10: Improvement recommendation
	Slide 11: Governance
	Slide 12: Governance
	Slide 13: Governance
	Slide 14: Governance
	Slide 15: Improvement recommendation
	Slide 16: Improvement recommendation
	Slide 17: Improvement recommendation
	Slide 18: Improvement recommendation
	Slide 19: Improvement recommendation
	Slide 20: Improvement recommendation
	Slide 21: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 22: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 23: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 24: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 25: Key recommendation
	Slide 26: Key recommendation
	Slide 27: COVID-19 arrangements
	Slide 28: COVID-19 arrangements
	Slide 29: Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 30
	Slide 31: Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Council
	Slide 32: Appendix B - Risks of significant weaknesses - our procedures and findings
	Slide 33: Appendix C - An explanatory note on recommendations
	Slide 34


	6 Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24
	Executive summary
	Content of report
	Legal and financial implications
	Corporate implications

	6 Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24
	Item 6_Appendix 1 TMSS AIS 2023_24 v2
	3.7 New financial institutions as a source of borrowing and / or types of borrowing


	6 Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24
	Item 6_2022_01_09_BC Appendix 2 10 years Liability-Benchmark

	7 Risk Management Group update
	1. Executive summary
	2. Content of report
	3. Other options considered
	4. Legal and financial implications
	5. Corporate implications
	6. Local councillors & community boards consultation & views
	7. Communication, engagement & further consultation
	8. Next steps and review
	9. Background papers

	8 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update (incl. Internal Audit Plan)
	1. Executive summary
	2. Content of report
	3. Other options considered
	4. Legal and financial implications
	5. Corporate implications
	6. Local councillors & community boards consultation & views
	7. Communication, engagement & further consultation
	8. Next steps and review
	9. Background papers
	10. Your questions and views (for key decisions)

	8 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update (incl. Internal Audit Plan)
	Item 8_Appendix - Business Assurance Strategy Update - January 2023 FINAL
	BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL
	Business Assurance Update
	Including Progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2022/23
	Maggie Gibb
	Head of Business Assurance (& Chief Internal Auditor)
	1. Introduction
	1.2 The Business Assurance Team is responsible for delivering the Council’s Risk Management, Assurance, Internal Audit, Counter Fraud, Insurance and Business Continuity services. The team operates under the Service Director for Legal and Democratic Se...
	1.2 This report outlines the work carried out by the Business Assurance Team for FY 2022/23 to date.  The Business Assurance work plans continue to be dynamic in nature as they remain flexible and evolve throughout the year to reflect; the changing ri...
	2. Resources
	3. Risk Management
	3.3 Work has also begun with services to gain greater visibility of how programme and project risks are being captured and escalated across the directorates. There will be greater focus on ensuring that programme and project leads have received their ...
	3.4 Following feedback from the recent Medium Term Financial Planning (MTFP) and Budget Scrutiny processes, we currently reviewing the key financial risk process across the organisation, including the reporting to directorate and the Corporate Managem...
	3.5 The last meeting of the Risk Management Group was held on 16 December 2022, an update on this meeting will be provided in a separate report. The Risk Management Group are also due to meet on 30 January 2023, and an update from this meeting will be...
	4. Business Continuity Management (BCM)
	4.2 The Business Continuity Management (BCM) function is now being delivered alongside the Risk Management function. Following the implementation of the new Business Assurance structure and recent recruitment, the new BCM Lead will be joining Business...
	5. Internal Audit
	5.1 The Internal Audit Function, supported by Mazars (through the APEX London Audit Framework) has been progressing with the delivery of the approved 2022/23 audit engagements. Since the last Audit and Governance Committee meeting in November, the tea...
	5.2 From the approved plan, there are seven audits that we have recommended for deferment (see yellow highlight in Appendix 1 for changes to the Internal Audit Plan);
	i. Teachers’ Pensions Audit: Teachers Pensions are in the process of moving all employers over to the new reporting system.  This incorporates three existing processes into one which will eventually make submissions more accurate and help reduce the r...
	ii. Continuing Health Care (CHC): The Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care System (BOB ICS) are reviewing the CHC function across the whole BOB. This will inform how CHC commissioning will be undertaken in future. We recomme...
	iii. K2 Systems Audit: The AURA programme which is focussed on the Council’s financial/HR system improvements is including a review of the K2 system and how the financial data and related controls will operate going forward. We recommend that this def...
	iv. Shop4Support: The AURA programme which is focussed on the Council’s financial/HR system improvements is including a review of the Shop4Support system, and a detailed review is currently being undertaken by the Traded Services Task and Finish Group...
	v. IT/ Infrastructure Resilience, Disaster Recovery and Backups, Change/ Patch Management (3 IT audits): These audits were identified as part of the IT Audit Need Assessment and the audit timing was based on the expected progress of the ONE Programme....
	Whilst we recommend that the audit activity be deferred to 2023/24 plan, we recognise that the IT Service are not being complacent about the security of the current IT environments which remain a mix of old and new. Through Managed Security Service (M...
	5.3 Using the audit tool, ‘Pentana’, Internal Audit have been monitoring implementation of audit actions. Follow-up of management actions is a continuous task that is undertaken by the auditors alongside their assigned audit engagements. The chart bel...
	5.4  Progress against implementing audit actions is reported to each of the Directorate leadership team meetings on a regular basis, and outstanding audit actions were reported to the Corporate Management Team (CMT) on 19 January 2023. There are only ...
	5.5 The Audit Board, chaired by the Service Director of Finance (S151), reviews progress against the Business Assurance Strategy, in particular delivery of the Internal Audit Plan..  Appendix 1 shows the current progress updated against the Internal A...
	6. Business Assurance
	6.1 The Business Assurance Team continues to progress with the COVID grant assurance as the requirements from central government for returns, reconciliations and pre/post assurance checks continue. The team liaise with the services and support in the ...
	7. Counter Fraud
	8.  Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Activity


	9 Contract Procedure Rules - Waivers & Breaches
	1.	Summary
	2.	Background
	3.	Contract Procedure Rules relating to Contracts, Waivers and Breaches
	4.	Waivers
	5.	Waiver Data tables
	6.	Breaches to Public Contracts Regulations 2015
	7.	Publication of Opportunities and Award Notices
	8.	Procurement & Contract Management Training
	9.	Procurement Legislation Changes

	10 Work Programme
	11 Action Log
	14 Confidential Minutes
	15 Contract Procedure Rules - Waivers & Breaches (Part 2)
	15 Contract Procedure Rules - Waivers & Breaches (Part 2)
	Confidential Appendix 3 - Breach report Speechlink (1)

	16 2022/23 Business Assurance Strategy Update: Completed Audits and Audit Actions Summary Report
	17 Action Log (confidential)

